
 

 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING NOTICE AND AGENDA 

Notice is hereby given that the City Council of Caribou will hold a City Council Meeting on 

Monday, December 14, 2020 at 6:00 pm.  

DUE TO SPACE LIMITATIONS AND IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE GOVERNORS LATEST EXECUTIVE 

ORDERS, THIS MEETING WILL BE CLOSED TO THE PUBLIC. THE MEETING WILL BE BROADCAST 

ON CABLE CHANNEL 1301 AND THE CITY’S YOUTUBE CHANNEL. 

1. Roll Call 

2. Invocation / Inspirational Thought 

3. Pledge of Allegiance 

4. Public Forum (15 minutes) - Comments can be submitted to the Clerk’s Office 

(dbrissette@cariboumaine.org) prior to 4:30 pm on the day of the meeting to be read at the 

meeting. Comments must include the individuals name and address for the record. 

5. City Council Minutes 

a. November 30 Regular Meeting 

6. Public Hearings and Possible Action Items 

a. Ordinance #05, 2020 Series, Temporary Sewer Regulations 

b. Ordinance #06, 2020 Series, Medical Marijuana Related Land Uses  

c. Ordinance #07, 2020 Series, Rezoning Properties Near Herschel Street to R-2 

7. Bid Award, Recognitions & Appointments 

a. MMA Recognition of 2020 Annual Report 

b. Recognition of outgoing Planning Board Member – Robert White  

c. Recognition of outgoing Council members 

d. 2021 Committee Appointments  

8. Reports of Officers, Boards and Standing Committees 

a. November 2020 Financial Report 

b. Manager’s Report 

9. New Business 

a. Designation of Dangerous Buildings  

b. Sale of Tax Acquired Property at 10 Mitchell road 

c. Review of Chamber Audio Replacement Options 

d. Resolution 12-01-2020 – Reappropriating 2020 Budget Funds 

10. Old Business 

a. Resolution 11-02-2020 – Teague Park Loan Against Reserves  

b. Resolution 11-03-2020 – Amending the City’s Fee Schedule 

c. Discussion Regarding Spectrum Franchise Agreement 

11. Reports and Discussion by Mayor and Council Members 

12. Executive Session(s) (May be called to discuss matters identified under Maine Revised 

Statutes, Title 1, §405.6) 

a. Personnel Session to review City Manager’s Annual Performance 

13. Next Meeting(s): January 4 (Organization Meeting) 

14. Adjournment 

If you are planning to attend this Public Meeting and, due to a disability, need assistance in understanding or 

participating in the meeting, please notify the City ten or more hours in advance and we will, within reason, 

provide what assistance may be required. 

Certificate of Mailing/Posting 

The undersigned duly appointed City official for the municipality of Caribou City hereby certifies that a copy of the 

foregoing Notice and Agenda was posted at City Offices and on-line in accordance with City noticing procedures. 

BY: ____________________________________ Danielle Brissette, City Clerk 

Pgs 2-5 

 

Pgs 6-10 

Pgs 11-17 

Pgs 18-21 

 

Pg 31

Pg 32 

Pg 33
Pg 34
 

Pgs 35-59
Pgs 60-61 

 

Pgs 62-68
Pg 69
Pgs 70-75 

Pgs 76-77 

 

Pg 78 

Pgs 79-82
 

 

 

 

Pgs 83-88 

 

1

mailto:dbrissette@cariboumaine.org


November 30, 2020 
20-29 Pg. 1 

Council Agenda Item #1:  Roll Call 

The Caribou City Council held a City Council Meeting, Monday, November 30, 2020 at 6:00p.m. in the 

Council Chambers with the following members present D. Morrell, H. Kirkpatrick, T. Ayer, N. Cote, J 

Theriault and J. Smith 

Dennis L Marker, City Manager was present via Zoom.   

The meeting was broadcasted via Spectrum, and Caribou’s YouTube Channel.   

Council Agenda Item #2:  Invocation/Inspirational Thought 

City Manager, Dennis Marker led a prayer.   

Council Agenda Item #3:  Pledge of Allegiance 

Deputy Mayor T. Ayer led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

Council Agenda Item #5:  Council Organization 

Manager Marker explained the resignation letter that has been received from Councilor R. Mark 

Goughan, and the process that is outlined by the City’s Charter.  He explained that the charter does not 

indicate a requirement that the Council would need to accept or reject the resignation letter before it 

becomes official.  The Charter indicates that the Council has 30 days to fill the vacancy on the Council.  

The last resignation that occurred was Shane McDougal in 2016 or 2017.  He stated that there were some 

concerns with the letter from Councilor Goughan that the basis for the resignation surrounded his 

attendance at council and committee meetings.  Manager Marker explained the attendance of the 

councilors on Committees, Liaisons and Council meetings. 

Discussion by council members regarding their concern that the resignation letter was initially talked 

about during executive session at the November 16, 2020 council meeting and had somehow gotten to the 

public.  Additional concern was raised that Manager Marker had broken confidence by acknowledging 

the letter to department heads in an email on November 26..   

Councilor Morrell and Smith also stated that they thought that the letter and information was to be kept 

confidential because of it being discussed in executive session.   

Councilor Theriault explained that she thought that the email they had received in the morning just like 

any other email was public information, and that it was the discussion in executive session should stay in 

executive session.    

Councilor Cote stated that she thought it wasn’t her personal information to share.   

Manager Marker explained that he had only spoken to the department heads regarding this because the 

information was already out through social media.  He stated that the letter was public knowledge and 

was not an executive session item, only the conversation was confidential.   

Deputy Mayor Ayer explained that there are three separate issues here.  The first issue being the 

requirement that Councilors attend 80% of assigned committee meetings.  A memo from the City 

Attorney indicates the Council needs to determine which “committees” are to be included in this 

requirement. The memo suggests that only Council Committee meetings should be part of the review 

criteria and not any liaison roles or outside entity committees. 

 

2



November 30, 2020 
20-29 Pg. 2 

Motion made by J. Smith, seconded by J. Theriault to accept city legal council’s suggestion that only 

Budget Workshops and City Council sub-Committees be considered for the 80% requirement (5 Yes, 1 

No H. Kirkpatrick) So voted.   

** See attached “Exhibit A” letter from the Law offices of Solman & Hunter, P.A 

Discussion led by Deputy Mayor Ayer regarding executive session information being leaked from the 

council.   

Councilor Kirkpatrick explained that it will be very difficult in the future to hold executive sessions if the 

people in it can not be trusted.   

Motion made by H. Kirkpatrick, seconded by D. Morrell for the Manager to hire a private investigator to 

ascertain the leak and how the information got to social media.  (6 Voted) So Yes.  

Deputy Mayor Ayer explained that the third issue is Councilor Goughan’ s resignation.  Through this 

discussion the Council has decided that budget workshops and council committees only apply and 

therefore the basis for Councilor Goughan tendering his resignation may be mute by the end of the year 

based on his attendance at the required meetings. 

Councilor Kirkpatrick stated that he believed that Council had to either accept or not the resignation and 

that if it was accepted today that they would have 30 days and the calendar year would be over and 

nobody would need to be assigned to fill the seat.  

Councilor Smith mentioned that the resignation only applies to Councilor Goughan’s current term of 

office and will not affect the results from the previous election.  Deputy Mayor Ayer confirmed this 

statement. Manager Marker indicated that Councilor Goughan had expressed a desire to take the oath of 

office on January 4 with the other Councilors-elect for the 2021-2023 term.  

Councilor Cote was concerned that the letter of resignation was tendered on November 16, 2020 and 

would like to know if the 30 days starts there or the day the resignation began.  Manager Marker again 

noted that the Charter doesn’t indicate the Council having to accept a resignation and therefore the 

vacancy could be considered as the date of submittal to the city.  By charter, the Council would need to 

fill the Council vacancy and elect a new Mayor within 30 days of the vacancy being created. 

Motion made by H. Kirkpatrick, seconded by D. Morrell to accept the letter of resignation as of 

November 30, 2020.  (5 Yes, 1 No N. Cote) So voted. 

Council Agenda Item #5:  Public Forum (15 Minutes) 

D. Morrell excused himself from the Public Forum portion of the meeting.   

Deputy Mayor Ayer read an email from Gary Aiken that was received by the clerk prior to the meeting.  

*** Please see attached as Exhibit B 

Council Agenda Item #6:  City Council Minutes 

 a.  November 16 Regular Meeting 

Motion made by J. Smith, seconded by H. Kirkpatrick to accept the minutes from the November 16 

Regular Meeting.  (6 Yes) So voted.  

Council Agenda Item #7:  Public Hearings and Possible Action Items 

3



November 30, 2020 
20-29 Pg. 3 

There were none.  

Council Agenda Item#8:  Bid Award, Recognitions & Appointments 

There were none.  

Council Agenda Item #9:  Reports of Officers, Boards and Standing Committees 

 a.  Manager’s Report 

Manager Marker reviewed the Manager’s report dated November 30, 2020 

Council Agenda Item #10:  New Business 

 a.  Introduction of Ordinance #05, 2020 Series, Temporary Sewer Regulations 

Councilor J. Smith introduced Ordinance #05, 2020 Series, Temporary Sewer Regulations 

 b.  Introduction of Ordinance #06, 2020 Series, Medical Marijuana Related Land Uses 

Councilor J. Smith introduced Ordinance #06, 2020 Series Medical Marijuana Related Land Uses 

 c.  Introduction of Ordinance #7, 2020 Series, Rezoning Properties Near Herschel Street to R-2 

Councilor J. Smith introduced Ordinance #7, 2020 Series, Rezoning Properties Near Herschel Street to  

R-2.   

 d.  Resolution 11-03-2020 Amending the City’s Fee Schedule 

Resolution is being treated as a first read and will be on the next agenda as old business.   

Council Agenda Item #11:  Old Business 

 a.  Porvair Filtration Contract Update 

Council had a discussion regarding the Contract with Porvair and would like to schedule to meet with a 

representative via Zoom for the next council meeting to discuss the contract.   

 b.  Resolution 11-02-2020 – Teague Park Loan Against Reserves 

Manager Marker briefly explained Resolution 11-02-2020 – Teague Park Loan Against Reserves. Tabled 

until the next meeting.  

Council Agenda Item #12:  Reports and Discussion by Mayor and Council Members 

 a.  Discussion About Executive Session Rules and Responsibilities  

This information has been previously discussed in the meeting under agenda item #4 Council 

Organization.   

Council Agenda Item #13:  Executive Session(s) (May be called to discuss matters identified under Maine 

Revised Statutes, Title 1, §405.6) 

Council did not enter an Executive Session.  

Council Agenda Item #14:  Next Meeting(s)  

4



November 30, 2020 
20-29 Pg. 4 

December 14 

Council Agenda Item #15:  Adjournment 

Motion made by H. Kirkpatrick, seconded by J. Smith to adjourn the meeting as of 7:55p.m. (6 Yes) So 

voted.   

Danielle M Brissette, Secretary 

5



 

 CARIBOU ADMINISTRATION  

25 HIGH STREET  

CARIBOU, ME. 04736  

MEMO  

 
TO:   City Council 

FROM:  Dennis Marker, City Manager  

RE:   Public Hearings 

DATE:  July 13, 2020 

 

 

There are three public hearings on this agenda. They pertain to the three ordinances introduced 

at the last Council Meeting. 

 

Ordinance #5 – Pertains to establishing criteria allowing a person to install a temporary 

private sewer system in lieu of immediate connection to the public system. This code 

amendment was initiated by Mr. Bacon who approached the Council earlier this year about 

the failure of his service lateral on Washburn Rd.  

 

Ordinance #6 – Pertains to opening the city’s land use code to allow more medical 

marijuana related uses in the city. This amendment was initiated by City Council.  

 

Ordinance #7 – Pertains to rezoning a small number of properties near Herschel Street from 

Commercial (C-1 and C-2) to Residential (R-2). The zoning change facilitates the conversion 

of a couple commercial properties to multi-family housing developments as well as changes 

existing residential uses to conforming rather than non-conforming uses. 

 

These ordinances were forwarded with a positive recommendation from the Planning Board 

(see attached Planning Board minutes for discussions about the ordinances).  

 

The Council, after conducting the public hearings, may approve the ordinances as written, 

modify the ordinances and conduct an additional public hearing in the future before approving 

the ordinances, or the Council may reject the ordinances. 

6



7



Councilor Jody Smith introduced the following ordinance  

On November 30, 2020: 

 

 

Ordinance No. 5, 2020 Series 

City of Caribou 

County of Aroostook 

State of Maine 

 

AN ORDNINANCE AMENDING SANITARY SEWER STANDARDS IN CITY CODE, 

CHAPTER 13 ZONING SECTION 700 WHICH ALLOWS FOR TEMPORARY PRIVATE 

SEWER SYSTEMS PRIOR TO CONNECTING TO A PUBLIC WASTEWATER SYSTEM. 

 

Short Title: An Ordinance Allowing Temporary Private Sewer Systems 

 

Whereas, the City of Caribou has been granted authority Home Rule Authority under M.R.S.A 

Title 30-A, which includes the ability to establish of Planning and Land Use Development 

standards, and  

 

Whereas, The City of Caribou has adopted Planning and Land Use development standards as 

part of Caribou City Code, Title 13, which includes regulation of private and public sewer 

systems, and   

 

Whereas, A request has been made to amend the city’s regulation of sewer systems by allowing 

temporary private underground wastewater disposal systems prior to connection to a public 

sewer system, and 

 

Whereas, the Caribou Planning Board conducted a public hearing on the proposed amendments 

during their November 12 and November 24 board meetings and have forwarded a positive 

recommendation for the attached code amendment.  

 

Now Therefore, The City Council of the City of Caribou, County of Aroostook, State of Maine, 

pursuant to the requirements of the City of Caribou Charter, Section 2.11 (1) does ordain the 

following: 

 

Section I: Code Amendment 

Caribou City Code, Title 13-700.27 is amended as follows (underlined text is added, stricken text 

is deleted): 

 
Sec. 13-700 General Requirements for Land Uses. 
 

27. Sewage Disposal. 

 

A. Public Sewage Disposal 
 

1. Any development within 1000300 feet of a public sewage disposal system, at its nearest point, 

shall make provisions for connection to the public system, except for temporary systems as 
provided in (B)(3) below. When no public sewage disposal service is within 300 feet shall not be 

available at the time of construction, a "capped system" with service laterals installed to each 

property may be installed within the development, at the discretion of the Planning Board and 

after consultation with the Caribou Utilities District (CUD), to allow future connection when 
service becomes available without needing future excavation within the right of way of any road 

improvements within the development. 

8



 

2. When a development is proposed to be served by the public sewage system, the complete 

collection system within the development, including manholes and pump stations, shall be 

installed at the expense of the applicant unless otherwise provided by a credit enhancement 
agreement with the city. 

 

3. The CUD shall certify that providing public sewage service to the proposed development is 
within the capacity of the system's existing collection and treatment system or improvements 

planned to be complete prior to the construction of the development. 

 
43. Any City approvals of a development that will connect to the public sewage system shall be 

contingent upon The written CUD shall review and approve approval of the public sewage system 

construction drawings for the public sewage system. The size and location of laterals, collectors, 

manholes, and pump stations shall be reviewed and approved in writing by the District. 
 

5. The public sewage disposal system(s) and related equipment for the development shall be 

designed by a Maine Registered Professional Engineer in full compliance with the requirements 
of the State of Maine, Subsurface Wastewater Disposal Rules and shall be approved by the CEO 

or Planning Board and the Health Office. 

 

4.   Any property that is within 200 feet of the public system and having a private subsurface 
wastewater system, shall connect to the public system when their private system needs to be 

replaced.  

 
B. Private Sewage Disposal. 

 

1. When a proposed development is not within 1000300 feet of a public sewage disposal system, at 
its nearest point, connection to the public system shallmay not be permitted required, except for 

temporary systems as provided in (3) below. Sewage disposal shallmay be by a private individual 

or communal subsurface wastewater disposal system as may be permitted by DEP in consultation 

with CUD. The developer may install and connect to the public sewage disposal system totally at 
their own expense and in conformance with the standards and specifications of the CUD. 

 

2. The applicant shall submit evidence of site suitability for subsurface wastewater disposal 
prepared by a Maine Licensed Site Evaluator in full compliance with the requirements of the 

State of Maine, Subsurface Wastewater Disposal Rules. 

 
a. The Site Evaluator shall certify, in writing, that all test pits which meet the requirements for a 

new system represent an area large enough to install a disposal area on soils which meet the, 

Subsurface Wastewater Disposal Rules. 

 
b. On lots in which the limiting factor has been identified as being within 12-15 inches of the 

surface, exclusive of shoreland areas, a second site with suitable soils shall be shown as a 

reserve area for future replacement of the disposal area. The reserve area shall be shown on 
the Plan and restricted so as not to be built upon. 

 

c. In no instance shall a disposal area be on a site which requires a New System Variance from 

the Subsurface Wastewater Disposal Rules. 
 

3. In the event that an existing connection to a public sewage disposal system fails, a temporary 

system may be used to allow the continued occupancy of a building pending repairs: 
 

a. In order to qualify for a temporary system: 

 
i. the estimated cost to repair the connection to the public sewer must exceed $20,000 as 

represented by three separate, independent bids; or non-bids as verified in writing.  

9



 

ii. the connection to the public system must be more than ten (10) feet below grade;  

 

iii. the owner must have sought and been denied a variance from the CUD; and 
 

iv.  the property owner provides to the city a performance guarantee, in accordance with 

section 13-750, which shall be sufficient to cover the reconnection costs as demonstrated 
by bids received for the work.  

 

b. The temporary system may be in the form of a subsurface wastewater system meeting the 
requirements of (2) above, or a holding tank.   

 

c. A temporary system may be used for up to one (1) year, and the LPI may grant a one-time, 

six (6) month extension for cause shown.   
 

Section II: Severability 

If any part of this Ordinance or the application thereof to any person or circumstances shall, for any 
reason, be adjudged by a court of competent jurisdiction to be unconstitutional or invalid, such judgement 

shall not affect, impair or invalidate the remainder of this ordinance or the application thereof to other 

persons and circumstances, but shall be confined to its operation to the section, subdivision, sentence or 

the section and the persons and circumstances directly involved in the controversy in which such 
judgment shall have been rendered. It is hereby declared to be the intent of the City Council that this 

section would have been adopted if such invalid section, provisions, subdivision, sentence or part of a 

section or application had not been included. 

 

Section III. Posting and Effective Date 

This Ordinance, being introduced on _______________________, 20___ and a Public hearing 

being held on _________________, 202___ was duly passed by the City Council of the City of 

Caribou, Maine, this ___ day of __________________ 20___. This ordinance shall become 

effective 30 days after adoption by the Council. 

 

___________________________  _________________________ 

R. Mark Goughan, Mayor   Thomas Ayer, Deputy Mayor 

 

___________________________  _________________________ 

Joan Theriault, Councilor   Nicole Cote, Councilor 

 

___________________________  _________________________ 

Dough Morrell, Councilor   Hugh Kirkpatrick, Councilor 

 

___________________________   

Jody Smith, Councilor 

10



11



Councilor Jody Smith introduced the following ordinance  

On November 30, 2020: 

 

 

Ordinance No. 6, 2020 Series 

City of Caribou 

County of Aroostook 

State of Maine 

 

AN ORDNINANCE AMENDING LAND USE REGULATIONS PERTAINING TO 

MEDICAL MARIJUANA RELATED LAND USES AND FACILITIES 

 

Short Title: An Ordinance Amending Medical Marijuana Related Land Uses 

 

Whereas, the City of Caribou has been granted authority Home Rule Authority under M.R.S.A 

Title 30-A, which includes the ability to establish of Planning and Land Use Development 

standards, and  

 

Whereas, The City of Caribou has adopted Planning and Land Use development standards as 

part of Caribou City Code, Title 13, which includes regulation of medical marijuana related land 

uses and facilities, and   

 

Whereas, the City Council requested the Planning Board reconsider the city’s medical marijuana 

related land use regulations in light of recent changes to state legislation on the matter, and 

 

Whereas, the Caribou Planning Board conducted a public hearing on the proposed amendments 

during their November 12 and November 24 board meetings and have forwarded a positive 

recommendation to the City Council for the attached code amendment.  

 

Now Therefore, The City Council of the City of Caribou, County of Aroostook, State of Maine, 

pursuant to the requirements of the City of Caribou Charter, Section 2.11 (1) does ordain the 

following: 

 

Section I: Code Amendments 

1. Land Use Table Amendments. The Land use table as found under Title 13-204 is amended to 

include the following land uses and zone designations (stricken text is deleted from the 

current use designation). 

 

Use Zone 

R-1 R-2 RC-2 R-3 C-1 C-2 I-1 I-2 H-1 

Medical Marijuana Dispensaries NO NO PB NO PB PB PB PB PB 

Marijuana Caregiver Retail Store NO NO NO  NO NO PB  PB PB NO 

Marijuana Cultivation Facility NO NO NO PB NO NO PB NO NO 

Marijuana Manufacturing Facility NO NO NO PB NO NO PB NO NO 

Marijuana Testing Facility NO NO NO PB NO NO PB PB PB 

 

 

2. Title 13-700.39 Amendments. Title 13-1700.39 Registered Nonprofit Dispensaries and 

Registered Cultivation Facilities for Medical Marijuana is amended as follows: (underlined 

text is added, stricken text is deleted) 

 

12



39. Regulation of Registered Nonprofit Dispensaries & Registered Cultivation Facilities 

for Medical Marijuana Related Facilities 

A.  Purpose and Authority  

The State Legislature, through the adoption of PL 2017 c. 452 (LD 1539), 'An Act To 

Amend Maine's Medical Marijuana Law', has determined that a municipality must 

specifically vote to allow certain activities and facilities associated with medical 

marijuana if the municipality wants to allow such activities to operate in the municipality. 

The City has determined that certain medical marijuana facilities, namely Caregiver 

Retail Stores, Dispensaries, Manufacturing facilities and Testing facilities, are 

appropriate activities in the City of Caribou, provided that the respective activity/use 

occurs in a zoning district in which the City has specifically identified the respective 

activity/use as a permitted use, and provided that the respective use/activity complies 

with the standards identified in this ordinance and all laws and rules adopted by the State 

of Maine regarding the same. To regulate the location of Registered Medical Marijuana 

Dispensaries within the City of Caribou: 

Pursuant to Title 22 MRSA Chapter 558 C and §2428 (10), Maine law provides for the 

siting of Medical Marijuana Dispensaries as permitted by the Department of Health and 

Human Services. The City of Caribou also reserves the right for additional siting and licensing 

requirements pursuant to municipal home rule authority, Title 30-A MRSA §3001. 

Whereas marijuana has been determined to have both legitimate medical uses as well as a 

history of widespread illegal use, this Ordinance shall serve to govern the siting and licensing 

requirements specific to the City of Caribou for the operation of a Registredthose Medical 

Marijuana Dispensaryfacilities listed above. 

B. Regulations: 

1.  The establishment of a Registered Nonprofit Dispensary or Registered Cultivation Facility shall 

require review by the Caribou Planning Board as per Section 13-300 "Site Design Review" of the 

Caribou Code and be required to have a. Section 13-302 (B) shall require a mandatory public 

hearing as part of the Site Design Review. Siting requirements shall also apply to any and all 

ancillary structures, mobile units, or any future types of dispensary mechanisms or related 

locations as yet contemplated within this ordinanceallowed within this ordinance. 

2.  No Certificate of Occupancy shall be granted for a Registered Nonprofit Dispensarymedical 

marijuana related facility unless the structure providing the serviceuse is located in the H-1, C-1, 

C-2, I-1, I-2 or RC-2 Zonesa zone where such is permitted as shown in the Land Use Table of 

section 13-204. 

3.  No medicinal marijuana related facility which dispenses harvested marijuana to a Qualifying 

Patient Registered Nonprofit Dispensary shall be allowed in the R-1, R-2 or R-3 Residential Zones 

or within 300 feet of an existing residential dwelling or within 300 feet of the R-1, R-2 or R-3 

Residential Zone Boundary Line. Nothing in this provision shall prevent a Registered Medical 

Marijuana Caregiver from operating as may be permitted by State statute. 

4.  No Certificate of Occupancy shall be granted for a medicinal marijuana related facility 

Registered Nonprofit Dispensary if the premise concerned is located within the a Drug Free Safe 

Zone, or within 500 feet of a preexisting Private School, Day Care Facility, or House of Public 

WorshipReligious Center.  

13



5.  No Certificate of Occupancy shall be granted for a Registered Cultivation Facility unless the 

structure is located within a Registered Nonprofit Dispensary or is offsite from the Dispensary 

within the R-3 Zone and also meeting all setback requirements applicable to Registered 

Nonprofit Dispensaries. 

6.  No Certificate of Occupancy shall be granted for a Registered Nonprofit Dispensary unless the 

premise concerned is in complete compliance with all municipal, state and federal site 

development Codes and Regulations. 

7.  Security requirements for both the Registered Nonprofit Dispensary and associated Registered 

Cultivation Facilitiesmedical marijuana related facilities shall include as a minimum: 

a.  Lockable doors and windows to include intrusion alarms with audible and police notification 

components sending notification directly to or through a second party to the Caribou Police 

Department. 

b.  Exterior security lighting comprised of spot lights with motion sensors covering the full 

perimeter of the facility. 

c.  Video surveillance capable of covering the entire perimeter of the facility, interior, and all 

plants cultivated within the facility. The video surveillance system shall be operated with 

continuous recording twenty-four hours per day seven days per week and such records of 

surveillance shall be retained for a minimum duration of 90 days 

78.  A medicinal marijuana related facility Registered Nonprofit Dispensary and Registered 

Cultivation Facility may not continue to employ an employee who is convicted of any state or 

federal controlled substance law, or is under indictment or charged with any state of federal 

controlled substance law violation, while employed at the medicinal marijuana related facility 

Registered Nonprofit Dispensary and or Registered Cultivation Facility. If a principal officer or 

board member of the facility is convicted of any state or federal controlled substance law while 

a principal officer or board member of a Registered Nonprofit Dispensary or Registered 

Cultivation FThe facility, that medicinal marijuana related facilityRegistered Nonprofit 

Dispensary or Registered Cultivation Facility shall immediately be considered in violation of this 

Chapter. 

89. Medical Marijuana Disbursing Facilities must provide an adequate interior waiting area to ensure 

no exterior waiting of clients. 

910. Medical Marijuana Disbursing Facilities must provide adequate off street parking on site at 1 

parking space per every 150 square feet of interior space. Each parking space shall be a 

minimum of 9 feet wide by 21 feet longAll parking and access thereto shall comply with city site 

development standards. 

1011. All signage shall meet the following requirements 

a.   The requirements of Section 13-700, #29, A through H, and  

b.  State requirements identified in Title 22, Chapter 558-C and under the Medical Use of 

Marijuana Program Rule 18-691 C.M.R. ch. 2, reference § 2429-B, Signs, advertising and 

marketing,  

c.  Signage may not use any pictorial representations of any portion of a marijuana plant, 

products, by-products, or paraphernalia associated with the use or distribution of legalized 

medical marijuana or illegal use of marijuana,    

14



d. The location, type and size of sign that a medical marijuana manufacturing facility or medical 

marijuana testing facility may display shall be the smaller of the size of signage permitted in 

the respective zoning district in which the facility is located or 24 square feet, 

e.  signage shall not be internally lighted or a digital sign, 

f.  A medical marijuana manufacturing facility or medical marijuana testing facility shall be 

permitted to display a maximum of two signs; a freestanding sign, such as one that is 

located adjacent to the road frontage of the property, and one that is located on the 

building in which the facility operates. 

12.  Registered Caregivers operating out of their residence shall apply for and obtain a permit for a 

home occupation in accordance with City of Caribou Land Use Ordinances Chapter 13-713 Home 

Occupations and shall comply with all standards set forth in that article. Registered Caregivers 

who cultivate medical marijuana only for themselves and/or members of their household are 

exempt from this requirement and are not required to obtain a permit or license. The 

cultivation, manufacturing, testing or sale of adult use/recreational marijuana from a residence 

is prohibited, unless it is for personal use in accordance with 28-A M.R.S. § 1502. 

13.  A request for a permit to establish a medical marijuana related facility shall be accompanied by 

evidence to the City that the applicant has obtained any and all required licenses, permits or 

similar approvals from the State of Maine, as such may be required by provisions of Title 22, 

Chapter 558-C and under the Medical Use of Marijuana Program Rule 18-691 C.M.R. ch. 2. 

 

Section III. Definitions. 

The following term and definition changes are made in Title 13-900 Definitions. (Underlined text is added, 

stricken text is deleted).  

House of Public Worship: “House of Public Worship” shall mean any building of place of assembly as so defined 

under Title 13 MRSDA Chapter 93.).  

Marijuana - Cardholder:  "Cardholder" means a A qualifying patient, a primary caregiver or a principal officer, 

board member, employee or agent of a nonprofit dispensary who has been issued and possesses a valid registry 

identification card. 

 

Marijuana – Caregiver: A person registered and holding a current license or certificate from the appropriate State 

department as a Caregiver. This may include a Caregiver’s assistant where permitted by State codes. 

 

Marijuana - Caregiver Retail Store: A store that has attributes generally associated with retail stores, including, but 

not limited to, a fixed location, a sign, regular business hours, accessibility to the public and sales of goods or 

services directly to a consumer, and that is used by a registered caregiver to offer marijuana plants or harvested 
marijuana for sale to qualifying patients. 

 

Marijuana – Concentrate: The resin extracted from any part of a marijuana plant and every compound, manufacture, 

salt, derivative, mixture or preparation from such resin, including, but not limited to, hashish. 

 

Marijuana – Nonprofit Dispensary:  "Nonprofit dispensary" means aA not-for-profit entity registered under Title 22 

MRSA §2428 that acquires, possesses, cultivates, manufactures, delivers, transfers, transports, sells, supplies or 

dispenses marijuana or related supplies and educational materials to cardholdersqualifying patients. All ancillary 

real property structures or mechanisms utilized as a mobile non-profit dispensary to include mobile units, vans, cars, 

trucks, trailers, motor homes, or other units not specifically set forth, must adhere to and shall be regulated by this 

ordinance. A nonprofit dispensary is a primary caregiver. 

 
Marijuana – Extraction: The process of extracting marijuana concentrate from marijuana using water, lipids, gases, 

solvents or other chemicals or chemical processes. 

 

15



Marijuana – Edible Product: A marijuana product intended to be consumed orally, including, but not limited to, any 

type of food, drink or pill containing harvested marijuana. 
 

Marijuana - Enclosed, Locked Facility:  "Enclosed, locked facility" means aA closet, room, greenhouse or other 

enclosed area equipped with locks and other security devices required by the State and this Ordinance that permits 

access only by a cardholder or qualified person employed by the related Registered Nonprofit Dispensary.   

 

Marijuana – Harvested Marijuana: The plant material harvested from a mature marijuana plant, except the stalks, 

leaves and roots of the plant that are not used for a qualifying patient's medical use. "Harvested marijuana" includes 

marijuana concentrate and marijuana products.  

 

Marijuana – Manufacturing: For purposes of regulation of marijuana industries and processes, manufacturing shall 

include the production, blending, infusing, compounding or other preparation of marijuana concentrate and 

marijuana products, including, but not limited to, marijuana extraction or preparation by means of chemical 
synthesis. 

 

Marijuana – Manufacturing Facility: A facility or a person authorized by the state to engage in marijuana extraction 

and manufacturing activities. 

 

Marijuana - Medical use:  "Medical use" means the The acquisition, possession, cultivation, manufacture, use, 

delivery, transfer or transportation of marijuana or paraphernalia relating to the administration of marijuana to treat 

or alleviate a registered qualifying patient's debilitating medical condition or symptoms associated with the patient’s 

debilitating medical condition as provided in state regulations. 

 

Marijuana – Product: A product composed of harvested marijuana and other ingredients that is intended for medical 
use. "Marijuana product" includes, but is not limited to, an edible marijuana product, a marijuana ointment and a 

marijuana tincture. "Marijuana product" does not include marijuana concentrate. 

 

Marijuana – Qualifying Patient: A person possessing a valid written certification regarding medical use of marijuana 

in accordance with State provisions. 

 

Marijuana – Registration Certificate: A document issued by the appropriate State department that identifies an 

entity, person or facility as registered to conduct marijuana related business in accordance with State provisions. 

 

Marijuana - Registered Cultivation Facility: “Registered Cultivation Facility” shall mean aAny site used for the 

cultivation of Marijuana whether at the location and a part of a Registered Nonprofit Dispensary or an associated 

offsite location meeting in accordance with all State operation and registration requirements pursuant to the 
licensing of the Dispensary.    

 

Marijuana – Sample: A marijuana plant or harvested marijuana that is provided for testing or research purposes to a 

marijuana testing facility. 

 

Marijuana – Testing Facility: A public or private laboratory that a) is authorized in accordance with State laws to 

analyze contaminants in and the potency and cannabinoid profile of samples; and b) is accredited pursuant to 

standard ISO/IEC 17025 of the International Organization for Standardization by a 3rd-party accrediting body or is 

certified, registered or accredited by an organization approved by the appropriate State agency. 

 

Marijuana - Usable Marijuana:  "Usable marijuana" means the The dried leaves and flowers of the marijuana plant, 
and any mixture or preparation of those dried leaves and flowers, but does not include the seeds, stalks and roots of 

the plant and does not include the weight of other ingredients in marijuana prepared for consumption as food. 

 

Religious Center: A building or buildings owned or maintained by a religious organization(s) for social, civic or 

philanthropic purposes, and in which persons regularly assemble or frequent for worship or religious instruction 

with associated clergy. Uses also included are seminaries, monasteries and convents. This definition shall not 

include temporary tents or structures. 

 

Registered Nonprofit Dispensary:  "Registered Nonprofit Dispensary" means a nonprofit dispensary that is 

registered by the department pursuant to Title 22 MRSA §2428, subsection 2, paragraph A. 

 

 

 

16



Section IV: Severability 

If any part of this Ordinance or the application thereof to any person or circumstances shall, for any 

reason, be adjudged by a court of competent jurisdiction to be unconstitutional or invalid, such judgement 

shall not affect, impair or invalidate the remainder of this ordinance or the application thereof to other 
persons and circumstances, but shall be confined to its operation to the section, subdivision, sentence or 

the section and the persons and circumstances directly involved in the controversy in which such 

judgment shall have been rendered. It is hereby declared to be the intent of the City Council that this 
section would have been adopted if such invalid section, provisions, subdivision, sentence or part of a 

section or application had not been included. 

 

Section V. Posting and Effective Date 

This Ordinance, being introduced on _______________________, 20___ and a Public hearing 

being held on _________________, 202___ was duly passed by the City Council of the City of 

Caribou, Maine, this ___ day of __________________ 20___. This ordinance shall become 

effective 30 days after adoption by the Council. 

 

___________________________  _________________________ 

R. Mark Goughan, Mayor   Thomas Ayer, Deputy Mayor 

 

___________________________  _________________________ 

Joan Theriault, Councilor   Nicole Cote, Councilor 

 

___________________________  _________________________ 

Dough Morrell, Councilor   Hugh Kirkpatrick, Councilor 

 

___________________________   

Jody Smith, Councilor 

17



18



Councilor Jody Smith introduced the following ordinance  

On November 30, 2020: 

 

 

Ordinance No. 07, 2020 Series 

City of Caribou 

County of Aroostook 

State of Maine 

 

AN ORDNINANCE AMENDING THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY BY REZONING 

PROPERTIES NEAR HERSCHEL STREET FROM C-1 AND C-2 TO R-2. 

 

Short Title: An Ordinance Approving the Herschel Street Rezoning Request 

 

Whereas, the City of Caribou has been granted authority Home Rule Authority under M.R.S.A 

Title 30-A, which includes the ability to establish of Planning and Land Use Development 

standards, and  

 

Whereas, The City of Caribou has adopted an official zoning map as part of Caribou City Code, 

Title 13, and   

 

Whereas, a request has been made to amend the zoning map to improve housing and 

redevelopment opportunities in the downtown area by rezoning several properties from C-1 and 

C-2 to R-2 on or near Herschel Street, and 

 

Whereas, the City’s Comprehensive Plan supports increasing housing developments and 

redevelopment of underutilized properties in the downtown area, and 

 

Whereas, the Caribou Planning Board conducted a public hearing on the proposed amendments 

during their November 12 and November 24 board meetings and have forwarded a positive 

recommendation to the City Council for the attached zoning map amendment.  

 

Now Therefore, The City Council of the City of Caribou, County of Aroostook, State of Maine, 

pursuant to the requirements of the City of Caribou Charter, Section 2.11 (1) does ordain the 

following: 

 

Section I: Code Amendments 

Zoning Map Amendment. The Official Zoning Map of the City is amended as shown in the 

attached Exhibit A of this Ordinance and by this reference is incorporated herewith. 
 

Section II: Severability 

If any part of this Ordinance or the application thereof to any person or circumstances shall, for any 

reason, be adjudged by a court of competent jurisdiction to be unconstitutional or invalid, such judgement 

shall not affect, impair or invalidate the remainder of this ordinance or the application thereof to other 
persons and circumstances, but shall be confined to its operation to the section, subdivision, sentence or 

the section and the persons and circumstances directly involved in the controversy in which such 

judgment shall have been rendered. It is hereby declared to be the intent of the City Council that this 
section would have been adopted if such invalid section, provisions, subdivision, sentence or part of a 

section or application had not been included. 

 

 

 

19



Section III. Posting and Effective Date 

This Ordinance, being introduced on _______________________, 20___ and a Public hearing 

being held on _________________, 202___ was duly passed by the City Council of the City of 

Caribou, Maine, this ___ day of __________________ 20___. This ordinance shall become 

effective 30 days after adoption by the Council. 

 

___________________________  _________________________ 

R. Mark Goughan, Mayor   Thomas Ayer, Deputy Mayor 

 

___________________________  _________________________ 

Joan Theriault, Councilor   Nicole Cote, Councilor 

 

___________________________  _________________________ 

Dough Morrell, Councilor   Hugh Kirkpatrick, Councilor 

 

___________________________   

Jody Smith, Councilor 

20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



 
 CARIBOU ADMINISTRATION  

25 HIGH STREET  
CARIBOU, ME. 04736  

MEMO  
 
TO:   City Council 
FROM:  Dennis Marker, City Manager  
RE:   MMA Recognition of 2020 Annual Report 
DATE:  December 10, 2020 
 

 
The Maine Municipal Authority has awarded the City of Caribou with a Superior Award for its 
Annual Report, which was prepared by Denise Lausier, Assistant to the City Manager. 
 
We’d like to recognize the quality of her work in this Annual Report and express appreciation for 
her service.  
 
The annual report can be found on the city’s website 
http://www.cariboumaine.org/wp-content/uploads/2020/08/2019-Annual-Report-PDF-for-
Website.pdf 
 

 

31



 

 CARIBOU ADMINISTRATION  

25 HIGH STREET  

CARIBOU, ME. 04736  

MEMO  

 
TO:   City Council 

FROM:  Dennis Marker, City Manager  

RE:   Planning Board Member Recognition – Bob White 

DATE:  December 10, 2020 

 

 

Mr. Robert White has served on the Planning Board for seven years (2013-2020). We’d like to express 

appreciation for his dedication and ackowledge the contribution he’s made in the community. As a 

Planning Board member he served in multiple capacities including the last two years as the Chair.  

 

During his time on the Planning Board he’s been involved in review of and approval of  

• City Comprehensive Plan 

• Maine Veterans Home 

• Riverside Motor Court 

• Multiple Day Cares and Preschools 

• Porvair Filtration Expansion 

• RSU 39 New Caribou Community School 

• St Peter Gravel Pit 

• Griffin Used Auto Sales 

• Daigle Oil Diesel Fuel Station 

• Code amendments pertaining to  

o Signs 

o Light Pollution 

o Livestock and Poultry 

o Low Impact Development and Complete Street Standards 

o Boarding Houses 

o Disorderly and Nuisance Properties 

o Manufactured Housing 

o Medical Marijuana Dispensaries and uses 

32



 

 CARIBOU ADMINISTRATION  

25 HIGH STREET  

CARIBOU, ME. 04736  

MEMO  

 
TO:   City Council 

FROM:  Dennis Marker, City Manager  

RE:   Recognition of Outgoing City Council Members 

DATE:  December 10, 2020 

 

 

Councilors Nicole Cote and Hugh Kirkpatrick have served on the City Council since 2017 and 2018 

respectively. We’d like to express appreciation for their willingness to serve the city. Since their time in 

office they’ve been involved with many city issues. The following are just a few of the major items with 

which they were involved: 

 

• Hilltop School Redevelopment and the relocation of Teague Park 

• Updating the city’s Tax Increment Financing Policies 

• Streamlining the review of annual liquor and small business licenses 

• Formalizing finance policies on return checks, tax acquired properties and disposal of surplus 

city property 

• Creation of a citizen’s airport advisory committee 

• Authorized the acquisition of streetlights and their conversion to LED thus saving the city over 

$70,000 per year in energy costs. 

• Addressing impacts of COVID 19 on city operations 

• Evaluation of options for new public safety facilities 

• Evaluation of existing city facilities to determine future, predictable capital needs 

• Failure and repair of the River Road 

• Being the first community in Aroostook County to be recognized as an Age Friendly Community 

• Evaluation of Fire/EMS services to outside communities and a more regional cost structure 

• Birdseye Site Cleanup and preparation for redevelopment 

• Sale of 60 Access Highway which is not being redeveloped for recreational commercial purposes 

• Altering direction of Tax Acquired Property sales which enabled returning over a dozen 

properties to private ownership and collection of taxes owed. 

33



 

 CARIBOU ADMINISTRATION  

25 HIGH STREET  

CARIBOU, ME. 04736  

MEMO  

 
TO:   City Council 

FROM:  Dennis Marker, City Manager  

RE:   2021 Committee Appointments 

DATE:  December 10, 2020 

 

 

There are several committees that will have vacancies beginning January 1, 2021. If any citizens are 

interested in serving on the following boards, please contact the City Clerk’s office for a volunteer 

application. 

 

Board General Purpose 

City Appeals Board Reviews actions of the Planning Board and Community Development 

Board of Assessors Reviews requests for tax abatements 

Caribou Housing Authority Reviews policies and actions of the Caribou Housing Department 

Caribou Investment Committee Considers possible investment strategies and options for the city 

Cary Board of Directors Oversees policies and programs of Cary Medical Center as a publicly 
owned hospital. 

Cary Hospital District Oversees properties and interests related to Cary Medical Center 

Library Board Supports programs, funding and policies of the City library 

Nylander Museum Board Supports programs, funding and policies of the Nylander Museum  

Planning Board Reviews City Comprehensive Plan, Zoning and Development 
Standards and reviews applications for new development 

Recreation Board Works with Recreation Department on programs and facilities needs 

 

34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



C
it

y 
M

an
ag

e
r'

s 
R

ep
o

rt
D

ec
e

m
b

er
 1

0
, 2

0
2

0

E
co

n
o
m

ic
 P

ro
je

ct
s

6
0

 A
cc

es
s 

H
ig

h
w

a
y

W
o

rk
in

g 
w

it
h

 c
u

rr
en

t 
o

w
n

er
 o

n
 b

u
ild

in
g 

p
er

m
it

s 
an

d
 r

ev
ie

w
 p

ro
ce

ss
es

 f
o

r 
a 

co
m

m
er

ci
al

 r
ec

re
at

io
n

 u
se

.

E
v

en
ts

 a
n

d
 M

a
rk

et
in

g
G

in
ge

rb
re

ad
 h

o
u

se
 p

ic
ku

p
 w

as
 b

ig
 s

u
cc

es
s.

 W
o

rk
in

g 
o

n
 a

 jo
in

t 
gr

an
t 

ap
p

lic
at

io
n

 w
it

h
 P

re
sq

u
e 

Is
le

 f
o

r 
jo

b
 d

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
fu

n
d

in
g.

 B
ig

 

w
ri

te
 u

p
 a

b
o

u
t 

C
it

y'
s 

st
o

ry
 t

el
lin

g 
fe

st
iv

al
 e

ff
o

rt
s 

in
 M

ai
n

e 
To

w
n

 a
n

d
 C

it
ie

s 
M

ag
az

in
e.

P
o
rv

a
ir

 C
D

B
G

 p
ro

g
ra

m
P

o
rv

ai
r 

w
ill

 c
lo

se
 o

u
t 

th
ei

r 
C

D
B

G
 g

ra
n

t 
b

ef
o

re
 e

n
d

 o
f 

ye
ar

. C
it

y 
is

 s
ti

ll 
h

o
ld

in
g 

$
9

,5
0

0
.

P
o

rv
ai

r'
s 

re
q

u
es

t 
fo

r 
re

im
b

u
rs

em
en

t 
fr

o
m

 t
h

e 
ci

ty
's

 a
gr

ee
m

en
t 

w
ill

 b
e 

o
n

 J
an

 1
8

, 2
0

2
1

 a
ge

n
d

a.
 M

r.
 M

ik
a 

is
 o

u
t 

o
f 

to
w

n
.

B
ir

d
se

y
e 

C
le

a
n

u
p

A
sb

es
to

s 
cl

ea
n

u
p

 h
as

 b
ee

n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 a
n

d
 r

ep
o

rt
 w

ri
tt

en
 f

o
r 

st
at

e 
re

vi
ew

. W
ai

ti
n

g 
o

n
 r

em
ai

n
d

er
 w

o
rk

 u
n

ti
l s

p
ri

n
g 

ti
m

e.

B
li

g
h

t 
C

le
a
n

u
p

P
re

se
n

te
d

 r
ed

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
o

p
ti

o
n

s 
fo

r 
a 

b
lig

h
te

d
 n

ei
gh

b
o

rh
o

o
d

 t
o

 in
ve

st
m

en
t 

co
m

m
it

te
e

. N
ee

d
 t

o
 d

is
cu

ss
 w

it
h

 C
o

u
n

ci
l.

O
g

re
n

 D
u

m
p

 S
o
la

r 
P

ro
je

ct
D

ev
el

o
p

er
 p

re
se

n
te

d
 p

re
lim

in
ar

y 
p

la
n

s 
to

 P
la

n
n

in
g 

B
o

ar
d

 o
n

 D
ec

 1
0

. F
in

al
 r

ev
ie

w
 w

ill
 t

ak
e 

p
la

ce
 in

 J
an

u
ar

y 
2

0
2

1
.

H
il

lt
o
p

 S
en

io
r 

L
iv

in
g

W
ai

ti
n

g 
fo

r 
d

ev
el

o
p

er
s 

to
 r

eq
u

es
t 

fi
n

al
 in

sp
ec

ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

th
e 

b
u

ild
in

g.

R
iv

er
 F

ro
n

t 
- 

M
a
st

er
 P

la
n

St
ak

eh
o

ld
er

 G
ro

u
p

 w
ill

 h
o

ld
 t

h
ei

r 
n

ex
t 

m
ee

ti
n

g 
o

n
 J

an
u

ar
y 

2
0

th
. 

T
it

le
 1

3
 R

eW
ri

te
M

an
y 

se
ct

io
n

s 
h

av
e 

b
ee

n
 r

ev
ie

w
ed

 a
n

d
 w

ill
 s

ta
rt

 t
o

 c
o

m
e 

to
 C

o
u

n
ci

l.

R
iv

er
 F

ro
n

t 
- 

P
o
w

er
p

la
n

ts
N

o
 a

d
d

it
io

n
al

 a
ct

io
n

 t
ak

en
 a

t 
th

is
 t

im
e.

R
iv

er
 F

ro
n

t 
- 

J
a
ro

sz
 S

to
ra

g
e

W
ai

ti
n

g 
o

n
 f

in
al

 d
et

ai
ls

 f
ro

m
 a

p
p

lic
an

t 
to

 is
su

e 
b

u
ild

in
g 

p
er

m
it

. I
n

fo
rm

at
io

n
 n

ee
d

ed
 h

as
 b

ee
n

 c
o

n
ve

ye
d

.

R
iv

er
 F

ro
n

t 
- 

S
a
lm

o
n

O
w

n
er

s 
w

ill
 b

e 
in

vi
te

d
 t

o
 n

ex
t 

R
iv

er
 f

ro
n

t 
st

ak
eh

o
ld

er
 g

ro
u

p
.

F
a
ça

d
e 

Im
p

ro
v
em

en
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
O

n
 h

o
ld

. A
d

ve
rt

is
em

en
t 

o
f 

fu
n

d
s 

w
ill

 b
e 

se
n

t 
o

u
t 

in
 F

eb
ru

ar
y 

b
as

ed
 o

n
 f

in
al

 b
u

d
ge

t 
n

u
m

b
er

s.

S
it

el
 B

u
il

d
in

g
N

o
 w

o
rd

 f
ro

m
 M

r.
 C

as
si

d
y 

ab
o

u
t 

h
is

 d
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

p
la

n
s 

fo
r 

th
e 

b
u

ild
in

g.

P
ro

n
to

 B
u

rr
it

o
St

o
re

 o
p

en
ed

 o
n

 O
ct

o
b

er
 2

3
. W

ai
ti

n
g 

fo
r 

so
m

e 
fi

n
is

h
in

g 
to

u
ch

es
 b

ef
o

re
 r

ib
b

o
n

 c
u

tt
in

g.

V
M

S
 B

u
il

d
in

g
Sp

ac
e 

n
o

w
 o

cc
u

p
ie

d
 b

y 
Sa

vi
Li

n
x.

 

60



O
th

er
 A

d
m

in
st

ra
ti

v
e 

P
ro

je
ct

s

In
v

es
ti

g
a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

C
o
u

n
ci

l
C

o
n
ta

ct
ed

 s
ta

te
 A

tt
o
rn

ey
 G

en
er

al
 O

ff
ic

e 
an

d
 M

ai
n
e 

li
ce

n
se

d
 P

ri
v
at

e 
In

v
es

ti
g
at

o
rs

 O
rg

an
iz

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

o
p

ti
o

n
s 

an
d

 r
ef

er
ra

ls
. 

E
st

im
at

ed
 

co
st

 o
f 

$
5
,0

0
0
.

F
ir

e 
S

tr
u

ct
u

ra
l 

S
tu

d
y

W
o

rk
 is

 o
n

-g
o

in
g.

 A
ll 

ce
ili

n
g 

ti
le

s 
ar

e 
d

o
w

n
. W

el
d

in
g 

w
o

rk
 is

 n
ea

rl
y 

co
m

p
le

te
 in

 li
vi

n
g 

ar
e

as
. 

2
0

2
1
 B

u
d

g
et

 P
ro

ce
ss

P
re

p
ar

in
g 

b
u

d
ge

t 
re

p
o

rt
 f

o
r 

Ja
n

u
ar

y 
1

5
 d

ea
d

lin
e.

 C
o

u
n

ty
 b

u
d

ge
t 

is
 in

cr
ea

si
n

g 
5

.9
5

%
 in

 2
0

2
1

. A
n

ti
ci

p
at

e 
R

SU
 b

u
d

ge
t 

w
ill

 a
ls

o
 in

cr
ea

se
 

d
u

e 
to

 m
aj

o
r 

ca
p

it
al

 m
ai

n
te

n
an

ce
 n

ee
d

s 
at

 H
ig

h
 S

ch
o

o
l. 

A
ss

et
t 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

is
 k

ey
 is

su
e 

fo
r 

2
0

2
1

 t
ax

es
.

T
a

x
 A

cq
u

ir
ed

 P
ro

p
er

ty
 P

o
li

cy
N

o
 a

d
d

it
io

n
al

 in
q

u
ir

ie
s 

ab
o

u
t 

av
ai

la
b

le
 p

ro
p

er
ti

es
. 

P
er

so
n

n
el

 P
o
li

cy
St

at
e 

la
w

 c
h

an
ge

s 
re

q
u

ir
e 

p
ro

vi
d

in
g 

le
av

e 
fo

r 
A

LL
 r

eg
u

la
r 

e
m

p
lo

ye
es

. N
ee

d
 t

o
 a

m
en

d
 p

er
so

n
n

el
 p

o
lic

y.

P
a
rk

in
g
 L

o
t 

P
a
v
in

g
P

av
in

g 
w

o
rk

 is
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 f
o

r 
2

0
2

0
. P

ar
ki

n
g 

Lo
t 

M
ai

n
te

n
an

ce
 a

cc
o

u
n

t 
si

ts
 a

t 
$

4
2

,8
6

6
.

T
ea

g
u

e 
P

a
rk

Th
e 

d
ee

d
 f

o
r 

Te
ag

u
e 

P
ar

k 
w

as
 r

ec
o

rd
ed

 o
n

 T
u

es
d

ay
, N

o
ve

m
b

er
 1

7
, 2

0
2

0
. W

ai
ti

n
g 

fo
r 

ic
e 

ri
n

k 
to

 f
re

e
ze

.

C
it

y
 H

a
ll

 B
o
il

er
 S

y
st

em
s

R
e

ce
iv

e
d

 b
id

 o
f 

$
2

,0
0

0
 f

o
r 

h
ea

t 
lo

ss
 s

tu
d

y 
at

 c
it

y 
h

al
l. 

A
n

o
th

er
 b

o
ile

r 
su

p
p

lie
r 

in
d

ic
at

es
 t

h
ey

 w
ill

 d
o

 t
h

e 
st

u
d

y 
fo

r 
fr

ee
 if

 w
e

 u
ti

liz
e 

th
ei

r 
se

rv
ic

es
.  

M
et

 w
it

h
 C

o
u

n
ci

l B
u

ild
in

g 
C

o
m

m
it

te
e

 o
n

 D
ec

em
b

er
 1

0
 t

o
 d

is
cu

ss
 s

co
p

e 
o

f 
h

ea
ti

n
g 

sy
st

em
 u

p
gr

ad
es

.

C
a
p

it
a
l 

F
a

ci
li

ty
 M

a
in

te
n

a
n

ce
 P

la
n

s
A

ll 
fa

ci
lit

y 
as

se
ss

m
en

t 
re

p
o

rt
s 

ar
e

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
. R

ec
o

m
m

en
d

ed
 r

e
p

ai
rs

/m
ai

n
te

n
an

ce
 w

ill
 b

e 
in

co
rp

o
ra

te
d

 in
to

 t
h

e 
2

0
2

1
 c

ap
it

al
 b

u
d

ge
t 

re
q

u
es

ts
. 

C
O

V
ID

-1
9
 S

ta
tu

s
In

cr
ea

si
n

g 
ca

se
s 

o
f 

C
O

V
ID

 in
 C

ar
ib

o
u

. M
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g 

cl
o

se
ly

 a
n

d
 w

ill
 n

o
ti

fy
 p

u
b

lic
 if

 a
d

d
it

io
n

al
 c

h
an

ge
s 

ar
e 

n
ee

d
ed

. C
h

ie
f 

Su
si

 h
as

 b
ee

n
 

au
th

o
ri

ze
d

 b
y 

fe
d

er
al

 a
n

d
 s

ta
te

 a
u

th
o

ri
ti

es
 t

o
 a

d
m

in
is

te
r 

va
cc

in
e 

to
 p

u
b

lic
 s

af
et

y 
p

er
so

n
n

el
.

T
ra

il
er

 P
a

rk
 C

lo
su

re
N

o
ti

ce
s 

w
er

e 
se

rv
e

d
 u

p
o

n
 t

en
an

ts
 o

f 
re

co
rd

 o
f 

th
e 

m
o

b
ile

 h
o

m
e 

p
ar

k.
 1

 n
o

ti
ce

d
 y

e
t 

to
 b

e 
se

rv
ed

 o
n

 a
b

an
d

o
n

ed
 t

ra
ile

r

N
o
rt

h
 M

a
in

 S
tr

ee
t 

P
ro

je
ct

 is
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

. W
o

rk
in

g 
w

it
h

 D
O

T 
fo

r 
re

im
b

u
rs

em
en

ts
.

A
ir

p
o
rt

N
e

w
 o

p
er

at
in

g 
sy

st
em

 is
 in

st
al

le
d

 a
n

d
 f

u
n

ct
io

n
in

g.
 

N
e

w
 f

u
el

 p
u

rc
h

as
e 

sy
st

em
 h

as
 b

ee
n

 in
st

al
le

d
. W

o
rk

in
g 

th
ro

u
gh

 c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

 d
et

ai
ls

.

In
v

es
tm

en
t 

P
o
li

cy
M

et
 w

it
h

 t
h

e 
C

o
u

n
ci

l i
n

ve
st

m
en

t 
co

m
m

it
te

e
 a

n
d

 lo
ca

l b
ro

ke
r 

to
 d

is
cu

ss
 in

ve
st

m
en

t 
o

p
ti

o
n

s 
an

d
 n

ex
t 

st
ep

s.

6
0

 A
cc

es
s 

H
ig

h
w

a
y

Le
ga

l C
o

u
n

se
l h

as
 s

en
t 

se
co

n
d

 n
o

ti
ce

 t
o

 p
as

t 
te

n
an

ts
 w

it
h

 o
w

ed
 r

en
ts

.

G
en

er
a
l 

P
la

n
 U

p
d

a
te

St
ill

 w
o

rk
in

g 
th

e 
cu

rr
en

t 
la

n
d

 u
se

 s
u

rv
ey

, w
h

ic
h

 w
ill

 n
ee

d
ed

 f
o

r 
fu

tu
re

 la
n

d
 u

se
 d

is
cu

ss
io

n
s.

U
n

io
n

 N
eg

o
ti

a
ti

o
n

s.
 

Fi
re

 U
n

io
n

 h
as

 r
eq

u
es

te
d

 t
o

 o
p

en
 n

eg
o

ti
at

io
n

s 
fo

r 
2

0
2

1
. W

ai
ti

n
g 

o
n

 in
it

ia
l m

ee
ti

n
g.

 

St
at

e 
ar

b
it

ra
ti

o
n

 m
ee

ti
n

g 
se

t 
fo

r 
Fe

b
ru

ar
y 

1
9

th
 t

o
 d

is
cu

ss
 P

o
lic

e 
U

n
io

n
 m

at
te

rs
.

N
ew

 L
E

D
 S

tr
ee

t 
li

g
h

ts
W

ai
ti

n
g 

o
n

 R
LT

o
d

d
 t

o
 p

er
fo

rm
 r

e
q

u
es

te
d

 w
o

rk
 f

o
r 

1
0

 n
ew

 in
st

al
la

ti
o

n
s.

R
ec

a
ll

 P
et

it
io

n
Th

e 
p

et
it

io
n

 d
ea

d
lin

e 
w

as
 D

ec
em

b
er

 1
0

 a
t 

4
:3

0
p

m
. I

n
su

ff
ic

ie
n

t 
si

gn
at

u
re

s 
w

er
e 

tu
rn

ed
 in

 t
o

 f
o

rc
e 

a 
re

ca
ll 

el
ec

ti
o

n
.

R
iv

er
 R

o
a
d

W
o

rk
 w

it
h

 s
ta

te
 M

EM
A

 t
o

 p
re

p
ar

e 
gr

an
t 

ap
p

lic
at

io
n

 f
o

r 
B

R
IC

 f
u

n
d

s 
to

 c
o

ve
r 

ro
ad

 r
el

o
ca

ti
o

n
s 

co
st

s.

P
ro

cu
re

m
en

t 
P

o
li

cy
Fe

lc
h

 &
 C

o
m

p
an

y 
h

as
 p

ro
vi

d
ed

 f
e

ed
b

ac
k 

o
n

 t
h

e 
p

o
lic

y 
an

d
 m

ad
e 

so
m

e 
re

co
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

s.
 W

ill
 r

e
vi

se
 f

o
r 

C
o

u
n

ci
l.

61



 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 

To:  Manager Marker, and members of the Caribou City Council 
From:  Penny Thompson, Tax Assessor and Chief Building Official 
Date:  December 11, 2020 
Subject: Dangerous Buildings in Caribou 
 
Blight remediation has been a major priority for the City Council and with the 
acceptance of the Blight Toolkit, staff has a resource for taking on the Blight Fight. 
 
One tool in the Toolkit is the “Dangerous Buildings” statute found in 17 MRSA §§ 2851 
- 2859. Caribou has used this twice before, in 2015 at 27 Birdseye Avenue and again 
2016 at 16 Sincock Street. In both cases, the proper process was followed. The 
owners did not pay the costs associated with demolition and a special assessment was 
made against the property which was not paid. This non-payment of taxes led to the 
owners losing the property in the automatic lien foreclosure process. 
 
Staff presents the following properties for possible action as a dangerous building for 
reason of: “structurally unsafe, unstable or unsanitary; constitutes a fire hazard; is 
unsuitable or improper for the use or occupancy to which it is put; constitutes a 
hazard to health or safety because of inadequate maintenance, dilapidation, 
obsolescence or abandonment; or is otherwise dangerous to life or property.” 17 
MRSA §2851 2-A Standard. 
 
827 Main Street  owner: Jeff Cook (now city acquired for tax non-payment) 
37 Home Farm Road owner: Greta Bielinski 
20 Veronica Street  owner: Mortgage Menders 
864 Main Street, Lot 75 owner: Barbara Rossignol (in Caribou Trailer Park) 
412 Access Highway  owner: Jimmy King  
 
On the drive by on December 8, 2020, all properties appear vacant. 
 
I have provided information on the process, the properties and a suggested timeline 
on the following five pages. 
 
I am happy to answer any questions you may have. Additionally, the entire Maine 
Municipal Association Dangerous Buildings MMA Legal Services Information Packet 
quoted herein is available in the MMA Member Center of the website. 
 

 
 

CITY OF CARIBOU, MAINE              Phone:   (207) 493-5961 
                 Fax:   (207) 498-3954 

 

   Office of Tax Assessment & Code Enforcement Municipal Building 
25 High Street 

Caribou, Me 04736 

“THE MOST NORTHEASTERN CITY IN THE U.S.” 
Penny Thompson, RES, CMA4  Tax Assessor / Chief Building Official 

E-Mail: pthompson@cariboumaine.org 

62



December 11, 2020 
Dangerous Building Staff Report – page 2 

Penny Thompson 
 

Information on important issues and considerations from Maine Municipal Association: 
I. Definition and Standard 
The municipal officers of a municipality may after notice and hearing adjudge a building to be a nuisance or dangerous and order the 
building to be repaired or removed. For purposes of this statute, “building” means a building or structure, or any portion of a building or 
structure, or any wharf, pier, pilings or, any portion thereof, that is located on or extending from land within the boundaries of the 
municipality as measured from the low water mark (17 M.R.S.A. § 2851). To be adjudged a nuisance or dangerous, the municipal officers 
must find that the building is structurally unsafe, unstable or unsanitary; constitutes a fire hazard; is unsuitable or improper for the use or 
occupancy to which it is put; constitutes a hazard to health or safety because of inadequate maintenance, dilapidation, obsolescence or 
abandonment; or is otherwise dangerous to life or property (17 M.R.S.A § 2851(2-A)). 
 
II. Securing Structures 
If a building poses a serious threat to public health and safety, a municipality may secure it pending the abatement proceedings discussed 
below and may recover its expenses from the owner (17 M.R.S.A. §§ 2856 and 2853). Notice must be served on the owner and all parties 
in interest in accordance with 17 M.R.S.A. § 2857, but notice need not be given in advance if prompt action to secure the structure is 
necessary. 
 
III. Local Process; Alternative Summary Process 
State law provides three methods for abating the nuisance and public safety threat posed by a dangerous building. 
     A. Under the first method, the municipal officers (selectpersons or councilors) may, after notice and hearing, find that a building, or 
portion thereof, is a nuisance or dangerous and must be abated or disposed of (17 M.R.S.A. § 2851). Notice of the hearing must be 
served on the owner and upon all “parties in interest” as defined in 14 M.R.S.A. § 6321 (which includes mortgagors, holders of the fee 
interest, mortgagees, lessees pursuant to recorded leases or memoranda of leases, lienors and attaching creditors, all as shown by 
Registry of Deeds records and documents referred to therein). Published notice is required where the name or address of any owner or 
party in interest is unknown or not ascertainable with reasonable diligence (17 M.R.S.A. § 2857). The notice must be recorded in the 
Registry of Deeds by the municipal clerk (17 M.R.S.A. § 2857). After the hearing, the municipal officers may make and record an order 
in accordance with section 2851(3) "prescribing what disposal must be made of that building" (17 M.R.S.A. § 2851). The order must be 
accompanied by written "findings" (see 17 M.R.S.A. § 2851(2-A)). Most often, the order is for abatement of structural defects within a 
specific period of time or removal of the structure. However, nothing in the statute limits municipal remedies. Neither the statute nor due 
process of law requires the municipality to first list the defects and allow a reasonable time for repairs before demolition. Kirkpatrick v. 
City of Bangor, 1999 ME 73, 728 A.2d 1268. However, the order may allow for delay of disposal if the owner has demonstrated the ability 
and willingness to satisfactorily rehabilitate the building (17 M.R.S.A. § 2851). The municipal clerk must record the order in the Registry 
of Deeds and must also serve an attested copy of the order upon the owner and all parties in interest (17 M.R.S.A. § 2851(3)). An appeal 
may be taken to Superior Court from the decision of the municipal officers. If no appeal is filed, or if an appeal pursuant to section 2852 
is filed and the Superior Court does not order, stay or overturn the order to dispose of the building, the municipal officers shall order the 
nuisance to be abated or removed in compliance with the order (17 M.R.S.A. § 2851). 
 
     B. The second method of abatement is an alternative to proceeding before the municipal officers. Instead, a municipality may seek an 
abatement and/or demolition order directly from Superior Court (17 M.R.S.A. § 2851(4)). After a hearing, the Court may order abatement 
and/or demolition and may award costs to the municipality. 
 
    C. The third method of abatement is a "summary" (immediate) process that may be used in cases involving an immediate and serious 
threat to public health, safety and welfare (17 M.R.S.A. § 2859). To use the summary process, a municipality acting through its building 
official (or other official named in the statute) must file a verified complaint with the Superior Court. The court may act "ex parte" to set a 
hearing date (within 10 days of the filing) and order the owner(s) and all parties in interest to appear. Upon hearing, the court may order 
abatement and/or removal and may assess costs. There is no appeal from the court's judgment, although the owner may, within 30 days, 
contest costs and seek damages for wrongful removal if provable. 
 
IV. Acknowledgment; Return of Service 
On a legal document, an "acknowledgment" attests to the authenticity of a signature and is required in order to record the document at 
the county Registry of Deeds. A "return of service" evidences that a copy of the document was actually served on a person by someone 
with authority to do so. All of the suggested forms in this packet should include an acknowledgment for each signature and should be 
recorded in the Registry of Deeds (17 M.R.S.A. §§ 2851, 2857 and 2858). Any notice or order required to be served on an owner or party 
in interest should also include a return of service (17 M.R.S.A. §§ 2851 and 2856). Service must be made in the same manner as a court 
summons is served, including by mail, by a sheriff or deputy within the sheriff's county, by another person authorized by law, or by some 
person specially appointed by the court for that purpose (Rule 4, M.R.Civ.P., linked above). Please note that while service on an out-of-
state property owner may be made in the same manner in which service is made in Maine, the person serving the order on an out-of-
state property owner must be one authorized to do so under the laws of the state where service is attempted. 
 
  

63



 
December 11, 2020 

Dangerous Building Staff Report – page 3 
Penny Thompson 

 

Information on important issues and considerations from Maine Municipal Association continued: 
V. Records 
In any proceeding before the municipal officers, a full record of testimony and deliberations should be kept (either a clearly audible tape 
recording or a written verbatim transcript). Documentary evidence (such as photos and inspection reports) also should be compiled and 
preserved. This record is essential to sustaining the municipal officers' decision if it is appealed. Proof of expenses (such as timecards 
and invoices) also will be important if a municipality itself undertakes the abatement and seeks to recover its costs. 
 
VI. Special Tax 
All expenses incurred by a municipality related to an order issued under section 2851, including the expenses relating to the abatement 
or removal of a building, must be repaid to the municipality by the owner within 30 days of demand or these costs may be recovered by 
assessing a "special tax" against the land (17 M.R.S.A. § 2853). The tax must be included in the "next annual warrant" to the collector 
and may be collected in the same manner as property taxes (including by automatic lien foreclosure). (See MMA's Municipal Assessment 
Manual for assessment and commitment discussions and related forms.) 
 
The costs that may be recovered by the municipality include, but are not limited to, the cost of title searches, location reports, service or 
process, reasonable attorney’s fees, the cost to secure or remove the building, and all other costs that are reasonably related to the 
removal of the building. 
 
VII. Personal Property Located in a Building Declared to be Dangerous 
In many cases, there will be items of personal property inside a building that has been declared dangerous using the process outlined 
above. Before the building may be demolished, the personal property must be addressed. Title 30-A M.R.S.A. § 3106 outlines the statutory 
procedure that must be followed by the municipality in the event of abandoned personal property. 
 
VIII. Additional Concerns 
As the discussion above indicates, a determination that a structure is a dangerous building requires careful consideration by the municipal 
officers and strict compliance with the requirements of State law, including complex notice provisions. A title search is recommended to 
identify all parties in interest entitled to notice of the proceedings. Moreover, demolition of property is a drastic measure that may result 
in liability for damages for wrongful removal. The municipality should take care to protect the due process rights of the owner and parties 
in interest by providing a meaningful opportunity to be heard and to address municipal concerns. City of Brewer v. Conners, CV-03-2 
(Super. Ct, Pen. Cty, May, 28, 2004), Kirkpatrick v. City of Bangor, 1999 ME 73, 728 A.2d 1268; Michaud v. City of Bangor, 196 A.2d 106 
(Me. 1963); Bennett v. Town of Poland, CV-88-64 (Super. Ct, Andro. Cty, Nov. 9, 1988). Therefore, we strongly urge the municipal officers 
to consult with local counsel before commencing such a proceeding. The municipality may recover the cost of legal advice as part of the 
"special tax" assessed against the property. 
 
Finally, and again in consideration of the complexity of the formal procedures outlined above, a municipality should first attempt to resolve 
the issue of an unsafe building informally by sending a letter by certified mail, return receipt requested, to the property owner setting forth 
the problem and explaining that unless the problem is resolved to the municipality's satisfaction within a specified number of days, the 
municipality will commence proceedings to have the building demolished. Municipalities should be aware that any negotiated consent 
which allows the municipality to demolish property and assess a special tax against the property must include written consent by all 
parties in interest. Notices of the consent must be recorded in the Registry of Deeds located in the county where the building is situated 
(17 M.R.S.A. § 2858). 
 
IX. Forms 
The MMA Legal Services Department would like to thank Geoff Hole, Esq. for sharing various forms that he developed for use in 
connection with the Title 17 dangerous building process. Those forms appear as part of this packet either in their original form or with 
modifications. 
 

The preceding information came from the Maine Municipal website Member Center. 

64



December 11, 2020 
Dangerous Building Staff Report – page 4 

Penny Thompson 
 

 
827 Main Street, photo taken 12-08-2020 

 
37 Home Farm Road, photo taken 12-08-2020 

  

65



December 11, 2020 
Dangerous Building Staff Report – page 5 

Penny Thompson 

 

 
20 Veronica Street, photo taken 12-08-2020 

 

 
864 Main Street, Lot # 75, photo taken 12-08-2020 

66



December 11, 2020 
Dangerous Building Staff Report – page 6 

Penny Thompson 

“Dangerous Buildings” - Suggested Timeline 
December 14, 2020   “First Read” of staff report by City Council  

December 2020  Work with legal counsel (as suggested by MMA) 

    Title search to discover all “parties in interest”  

    Attempt to resolve issue informally (as suggested by MMA) 

    Fully document buildings with photos and inspection reports 

January 2021   City Council to schedule hearing on dangerous building 

    Prepare “Notice of Hearing” Pursuant to 17 MRSA §§ 2851 - 2859 

February 2021  Provide notice pursuant to 17 MRSA § 2857 to owner & parties in interest 

    Publish notice once per week for three successive weeks in newspaper 

    City Clerk to record notice at Southern Registry of Deeds (Houlton) 

March 2021 City Council to hold hearing and after finding that the building is a 
“dangerous building”, issue an order including that the building be 
secured, abated, removed and disposed. (first March meeting? [Must be 
no less than 10 days after service]) 

Staff will prepare “Findings and Order” for City Council approval 

Staff to properly address “abandoned property” per 30-A MRSA §3106 

City Clerk to cause attested copy to be served upon owner & parties in 
interest as provided in statute 

City Clerk to record order at Southern Registry of Deeds (Houlton) 

April 2021   Time for any appeals of the order 

    Ideally, time for owner to consent to removal/corrective action 

May 2021   Demolition of dangerous building (as early as possible) 

    Prepare itemized accounting of all expenses to carry out order 

Invoice given to owner – has 30 days to pay after demand (send as soon 
as possible – before end of May) 

June 2021   Work with owner to pay fees (30 days to pay after demand) 

July 2021   If not paid, supplemental assessment made with tax commitment 

More information online about proper process to provide notice / service 

67



December 11, 2020 
Dangerous Building Staff Report – page 7 

Penny Thompson 

 

What to do about 412 Access Highway? 
(The pop-up junkyard) 

 

Another nuisance property is 412 Access Highway. This is working its way thru the court system. 

   

   
Staff will continue to monitor to determine if 

30-A MRSA §3106-A Municipal authority to manage abandoned mobile homes 
can be used if the mobile home is abandoned and the condition of the mobile home deteriorates. 

 

68



 

 CARIBOU ADMINISTRATION  

25 HIGH STREET  

CARIBOU, ME. 04736  

MEMO  

 
TO:   City Council 

FROM:  Dennis Marker, City Manager  

RE:   Sale of Tax Acquired Property at 10 Mitchell Rd 

DATE:  December 10, 2020 

 

 

The city received an offer from Mr. Keith Draper to purchase the tax acquired property at 10 
Mitchell Road (Map 7 Lot 047-A).  The property was included with those available for public bid 
this past spring, but no bids were received for it. The city’s tax acquired policy states that the 
properties can now be sold after public bid by negotiated price with the Manager so long as the 
price is not less than the previously advertised minimum bid amount. Mr. Draper is offering the 
minimum bid amount of $1,500 for the property. The current tax amount owed is $585.15 plus 
interest and fees. The bid amount will clear the account.  
 
Staff Recommendation: 
Approve the sale of 10 Mitchell Road to Mr. Keith Draper for the amount of $1,500. 
 

 

69



 
 

Proposal for Professional Computer Networking Services 
 

 

City of Caribou 
 

Council Chamber Audio / Video Modernization 
 

 

 
 

 
 
Introduction 
 

The City of Caribou is considering a significant upgrade to the Audio/Video production and projection systems within the Council 
Chamber.  The system currently in place has been pieced together over a span of 3+ decades, with many of its core components 
having never been replaced.  As a result, there are a mix of new and old components often tied together using various adapters and 
parts meant to tie new and old together.  The result has become unsatisfactory, with lingering audio issues, incompatible video formats 
and an untenable public appearance.  One piece of the puzzle that cannot be improved upon is a low-grade video connection to 
Spectrum for the City’s Public Access Channel (PEG channel).  Until Spectrum upgrades their equipment to accept a high-definition 
signal, this limitation will remain.  While this limitation negatively effects the PEG channel’s video capability, the audio issues negatively 
impacting both streaming and PEG channel production are addressable.  The ever-increasing viewership of the City’s YouTube 
streaming channel for Council and Planning Board meetings makes this an ideal time to consider improving the City’s camera systems 
to provide better picture quality to its citizens. 
 
In this proposal we aim to address both existing systems and systems that would add to the City’s quality of service for its citizens, 
staff and the Council itself.  This proposal has been broken down into sections as they relate to the individual systems so that they can 
be independently addressed.  Please keep in mind that some systems rely on others, and so upgrading one may require upgrading 
multiple systems at the same time.  Notations have been made in this case. 

 
Systems to be addressed include: 
 

• Moving to a wireless microphone system, which will greatly improve individual audio signals from Councilors and those 
addressing the Council. 

 
• Moving to High Definition cameras to improve video quality. 

 
• Moving to a high-definition, wide-screen projector system to improve compatibility with modern input sources and provide a 

better image to in-person viewers  
 

• Provide an automated dictations and transcription system to improve the content of meeting minutes 
 

• Provide a better experience tying the chamber into video conferencing systems such as Zoom or Teams 
 

• Provide a timing system to provide both the Council, and those addressing the Council with a clear indication of how much 
time is allotted and remaining during public input sessions. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

70



 
 
 

General Description of Services - Audio 
 
The City’s current audio system, consisting of microphones and mixers dating back to (as best we’ve been able to tell) the late 80’s has 
had a number of issues.  Occasional static or echo are some of the minor issues, while individual audio quality and volume are more 
consistent and apparent.  Many issues are related to the age of the system.  We have many cables and custom soldered connections 
that, over time, and after constant manipulation, have started to break down.  Another issue is the inability to easily adjust 
microphones for individual users. While addressing the aforementioned issues, one of the upgrades we’re proposing, at the City’s 
request, is to make the new system portable so that should the need arise, it could be relocated to a larger venue.  We will provide 
project costs for by a mobile system, and a stationary system that will reside in the existing rack space. 
 
We propose that the new system be installed into a mobile rack in order to keep the system safely portable.  To address the audio 
issues while helping to facilitate portability, we’re proposing that new microphones be wireless.  The wireless microphones for 
councilors and the City Manager would change from the current “goose-neck” style, to a wireless clip-on microphone with a pack, to be 
individually assigned to each individual.  A wireless podium mic would also be installed.  This system would allow for greater individual 
volume level adjustment, and would eliminate fluctuations in sound level caused by movement towards or away from the individual 
mics.   
 
As part of a complete portable solution, the system for streaming meetings to YouTube will be relocated into the portable rack, 

including a laptop computer required for controlling the stream and providing the regular content to the PEG channel. This eliminates 
the use of old hand-me-down PCs currently in place to perform this function.   We will also provide components that will allow for tie-in 
to an external speaker system at a remote venue. 
 
 
Scope of Services  
 
We will provide professional network services to perform the following tasks:  
 

1. Provide and install new mixers 
2. Provide and install new wireless microphones (8 clip-on, 1 podium mount) 
3. Provide and install an antenna system within the Chamber for microphones 
4. Provide and install a mobile rack for equipment 
5. Move streaming equipment into new rack 
6. Provide and configure laptop for streaming, PEG channel scroll and Digital Processor management 
7. Train appropriate staff on usage 

 
 
Cost 
 

Description Cost Quantity Total 

Shure 8-Channel Mixer $1650 1 $1650 

Shure 4-Channel Mixer $300 1 $300 

Shure Digital Processor $775 1 $775 

Shure Wireless Clip-On Mic System $550 8 $4400 

Shure Handheld Mic System w/base (Podium) $600 1 $600 

Shure Antenna System (distributors, splitters, antennae) $200 1 $2000 

Rechargeable Batteries & Chargers $150 1 $150 

Mobile Rack $800 1 $800 

HP Laptop Computer $600 1 $600 

Labor (*mobile/stationary) $1600/$1300 1 $1600/$1300 

Project Total - Mobile   $12,875 

Project Total – Stationary   $11,775 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

71



 

General Description of Services – Server Rack 
 
The existing audio system and the City’s servers and some network equipment share a single full-size 44U data rack/cabinet.  In order 
to mobilize the audio system, we will need to remove the existing rack/cabinet and re-mount the network equipment in a smaller unit 
due to the lack of space available within the room.  We will procure a smaller enclosed rack/cabinet to move the servers and network 
equipment into.  This will allow us to have two smaller units in the closet, which will fit without issue.  This process will need to be 
done over a weekend, or on a holiday to prevent interruptions in the regular business of the City. 
   
Scope of Services  
 
We will provide professional network services to perform the following tasks:  
 

1. Remove all of the equipment from the existing rack and have the rack/cabinet removed 
2. Provide and install 1 new cabinet 
3. Re-install servers and network equipment into new rack 

 
Cost 
 

Description Cost Quantity Total 
Rack/cabinet $550 1 $550 

Labor $1000 1 $1000 

Project Total   $1550 
*This project must be included with mobile audio/streaming system 

 
 

General Description of Services - Cameras 
 
The City’s current camera for the chamber is a standard definition Sony Pan/Tilt/Zoom color camera with remote control for adjusting 
the picture.  Originally purchased for the PEG channel, its picture is limited in quality to match Spectrum’s connection and has worked 
fine in this capacity.  After implementing internet streaming of meetings, its quality is sorely lacking.  Watching the stream on a 
computer, tablet or smart TV exaggerates the poor picture quality. With an ever-increasing numbers of viewers via this medium, we 
propose that the camera be replaced with a newer 1080p high-definition unit.  Two additions to the camera system are also being 
proposed.  First is the addition of a second camera and a Picture-in-Picture processor so that we may have a camera facing guest 
speakers addressing the council from the podium.  The second image would be provided in a small window in a corner of the main 
picture of the council.  The second addition is that of an additional camera and tri-pod for use in remote applications where the entire 
system is used at another venue.  Project Totals for both mobile and stationary options are provided 
 
Scope of Services  
 
We will provide professional network services to perform the following tasks:  
 

1. Provide and install 2 HD cameras in the Council Chamber, working with City on ideal locations 
2. Provide and configure one mobile HD camera with tri-pod and cabling for mobile use (optional) 
3. Install and configure 1 Picture-in-Picture processor 
4. Provide and install 1 HDMI switch (required to go between PEG channel scroll and cameras) 
5. Provide and install 1 HDMI Audio Inserter (required to provide HD audio to streaming channel) 
6. Train appropriate staff on usage 

 
Cost 
 

Description Cost Quantity Total 

1080p HD Cameras (mobile/stationary) $900 3/2 $2700/$1800 

Tri-Pod (mobile option) $125 1 $125 

Picture-in-Picture processor $125 1 $125 

Audio Inserter $190 1 $190 

HDMI Switch $125 1 $125 

Cables and Connectors $285 1 $285 

Labor $1000 1 $1000 

Project Total - Mobile   $4550 

Project Total – Stationary   $3525 

72



General Description of Services - Projector 
 
Another part of this proposal is to update the projector system to a modern, wide-screen format with proper illumination for a lit room, 
and with connectivity options for newer laptops to eliminate the use of numerous adapters and a nest of cables that currently exists in 
the Chamber.  We are providing both permanent and mobile options for the projector system.  Portability for this system requires a tri-
pod mounted screen, and the continued use of a table on the floor of the Chamber for placement of the projector.  The permanent 
mounting option will allow for mounting both the screen and projector from the ceiling, eliminating the need for a table and cabling to 
remain in the middle of the room. 
 
 
Scope of Services – Permanent Projector  
 
We will provide professional network services to perform the following tasks:  
 

1. Provide and install 1 4000 lumen, wide-screen format, HD DLP projector, utilizing a ceiling mount 
2. Provide and install 1 106” wide-screen format ceiling mount projector screen 
3. Provide and install cabling and wall-mount interface for VGA and HDMI input connections to projector.  We will work with 

City staff to determine the best location for these connections. 
4. Provide and install cabling for projector tie-in to video switch and PEG/streaming video 
5. Train appropriate staff on usage 

 

 
Cost 
 

Description Cost Quantity Total 

BenQ 1080p DLP 4000 Lumen projector $1000 1 $1000 

Da-Lite 106” 16x9 wide-screen projector screen $450 1 $450 

Projector ceiling mount $100 1 $100 

Cabling, conduit and wall-mount ports $225 1 $225 

System Installation, configuration and instruction $600 1 $600 

Project Total   $2375 
 
 
 
Scope of Services – Portable Projector  
 
We will provide professional network services to perform the following tasks:  
 

1. Provide 4000 lumen, wide-screen format, HD DLP projector 
2. Provide and install 1 100” wide-screen format tri-pod projector screen 
3. Provide and install cabling for projector tie-in to video switch and PEG/streaming video 
4. Train appropriate staff on usage 

 
 

Cost 
 
 

Description Cost Quantity Total 

BenQ 1080p DLP 4000 Lumen projector $1000 1 $1000 

Da-Lite 100” Tri-Pod 16x9 wide-screen projector screen $500 1 $500 

Cabling $125 1 $125 

System Installation, configuration and instruction $200 1 $200 

Project Total   $1825 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

73



General Description of Services - Dictation 
 
At the request of the City, we are including a proposal to add an automated dictation and transcription system to aid in the generation 
of meeting minutes.  In collaboration with the City Clerk, we’ve determined that the most suitable application will be a post-process 
system, which takes a digital recording of the meeting and generates a textual output of the recording after the meeting has 
concluded, and has the capability of identifying individual/differing speakers within the generated text.  The other style of system, 
which generated the text in real-time was less desirable due to the busyness and difficulty of the workflow.  This determination was 
made with the City Clerk’s input. 
 
The proposed system consists of a digital recorder, and an audio interface for capturing audio from the microphone system.  The post-
processing is handled by a 3rd party service to be selected based on features and cost.  Processing, whether live or post-process 
requires a significant amount of processing power and complicated Artificial Intelligence in order to break down individual speakers, 
and for our application is what’s most commonly used.  These services come in a range of varieties and cost models.  Some charge per 
minute of audio to be transcribed, while others come with a pre-determined cost for a fixed number of minutes per month.  The council 
should expect costs to run between $600 to $1200 per year.  The vast majority of these services offer a trial period, and we 
recommend that, should the City decide to move forward, we procure and install the recording system, then take advantage of the 
available trials and with the City Clerk to determine the best solution. 
 
Scope of Services  
 
We will provide professional network services to perform the following tasks:  

 
1. Procure digital recorder and audio capture equipment 
2. Procure service on the City’s behalf with a service provider (trint, otter.ai, rev, potentially others) 
3. Train appropriate staff on usage 

 
Cost 
 

Description Cost Quantity Total 

Digital Recorder $350 1 $350 

Recording Media (high-grade USB 3.0 drive) $50 1 $50 

XLR Cabling  $25 4 $100 

Labor $300 1 $300 

Project Total   $800* 
*Does not include cost of transcription service.  City should budget $1200 per yr. for service – may be reduced 
 
 
 

General Description of Services – Zoom Compatibility 
 
Due to COVID-19, some meetings taking place in the Council Chamber have gone partially virtual, incorporating Zoom running on a 
laptop.  This has proven to be far less than ideal.  With no capability for digital audio connections between the Zoom laptop and the 
rest of the system, the Council has resorted to placing microphones in front of speakers to get sound between Zoom and the Chamber.  
Speakers and microphones are notoriously bad when in close proximity, and poor audio has been the resulting outcome.  We propose 
the addition of an HDMI capture device and a pair of high-quality amplified speakers.  This will allow the Chamber laptop to be tied into 
the audio/video system contained in the Chamber to provide a significantly better experience for both on-site and remotely connected 
participants.  This project is reliant upon components contained within the Camera and Audio projects proposed within this document.      
 
Scope of Services  
 
We will provide professional network services to perform the following tasks:  
 

1. Procure and install a video capture device for the Chamber laptop 
2. Procure and install a pair of high-quality speakers to be mounted in the ceiling on either side of the projector screen 
3. Train appropriate staff on usage 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(Zoom Compatibility cont) 
 

74



 
Cost 
 

Description Cost Quantity Total 

HD Capture Device $200 1 $200 

Speaker System $200 1 $200 

Cabling  $75 1 $75 

Labor $300 1 $300 

Project Total   $775 
 
 
 

General Description of Services – Timer System 
 
At the request of the Council, we’re proposing the installation of a countdown timer.  The timer will mount on the wall in a conspicuous 
location, and show minutes and seconds and be remotely controlled.  When the public addresses the Council, they are granted 5 
minutes to make their presentation or converse with the Council, and this will provide both the council and the presenter with an easy-
to-read display of what time remains during a presentation.  The timer we’re proposing provides a 5.5” red LED display showing both 
minutes and seconds remaining.  A remote for starting the timer will allow the Mayor or whoever is presiding to start the timer at will 
and cancel it should a presentation wrap up early.  We will work with the City on an ideal location within the chamber. 
 
Scope of Services  
 
We will provide professional network services to perform the following tasks:  
 

1. Procure and install one Countdown Timer Display 
2. Train appropriate Councilmembers on usage 

  
 
 
Cost 
 

Description Cost Quantity Total 

Microframe Countdown Timer $350 1 350 

Installation (includes cabling & conduit) $250 1 $250 

Total   $600 
 

75



 

 

 

 

 

Resolution 12-01-2020 

A Resolution of the Caribou City Council  

Making 2020 Year End Appropriation Changes 

 

WHEREAS, The City Charter outlines procedures for adopting and amending the budget; and 
  
WHEREAS, the City Manager has recommended several budget appropriation changes to help clean up 
accounts and uncollectable tax obligations; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City Council has determined it to be appropriate to make the budget changes noted 
below.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CARIBOU CITY COUNCIL, does hereby make changes to the 2020 
budget and accounts as follows: 
 

Line Item Original 
Budget 

New Use/ 
Appropriation 

Description 

E80-01-201-01  $13,000   $7,500 Apply $7,500 of these abatement funds toward the outstanding 
taxes owed ($18,207.49) on the Birdseye property owned by city. 

E80-01-201-01  $13,000   $621.78 Apply $621.78 of these abatement funds toward a 2010 personal 
property tax account of Gerry J. Beauleu. Current outstanding 
balance of $621.78. 

E80-01-201-01  $13,000   $404.15 Apply $404.15 of these abatement funds toward account 4716 
with taxes owed from 2016-2018. Property is a modular trailer 
with no value. Lien waivers were granted past two years. 

E31-01-031-01  $20,000   Reserve Any unused funds of this building maintenance account at year 
end are to be moved to the fire building maintenance reserve G-
368-10 to help with costs of the station repairs. Current reserve 
balance is $202,489. Current project cost will exceed that amount. 

E35-01-031-01  $3,000   Reserve Any unused funds of this building maintenance account at year 
end are to be moved to the Police station study reserve G-367-09, 
which has a current account balance of ($27,111) 

E38-01-105-01 $20,000 Reserve Any unused funds of this Street Light maintenance account at 
year end are to be moved to the Street Light maintenance fund 
G-477-00. Current account balance is $60,385. 

E40-01-014-01 $3,500 Reserve Any unused funds of this Equipment Maintenance account at 
year end are to be moved to the Public Works building 
Maintenance Reserve. Current account balance of ($15,733). 

E11-01-413-01 $36,945 Reserve Any unused funds of this New Fire Station account at year end 
are to be moved to the fire building maintenance reserve G-368-
10 to help with costs of the station repairs.  

 

76



This resolution was duly passed and approved by a majority of the City Council of the City of Caribou this 

____th day of ___________ 20____.  

 

 

________________________________  __________________________________ 

Thomas Ayer, Deputy Mayor    Attest: Danielle Brissette, City Clerk 

 

[City Seal]    

77



 

 

 

 

 

Resolution 11-01-2020 

A Resolution of the Caribou City Council  

Utilizing Reserves to Finance Teague Park Improvements 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Caribou desires to complete the improvements around Teague Park by installing a 
splash pad, providing additional landscaping and paving of the parking area between the recreation building 
and the new Teague Park improvements (hereafter Park Improvements) for an estimated cost of $481,000; 
and  
  
WHEREAS, completion of the Park Improvements will result in greater health, safety, and quality of life 
for citizens and visitors who may use the park facilities, and 
 
WHEREAS, the cost of such Park Improvements exceeds funds currently designated for the work. The 
city is short $278,960; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that the Park Improvements are of such importance to the 
community that the use of other designated reserve funds is warranted to complete the project; and 
 
WHERAS, the City Council has authority under City Charter Section, 5.09(d) to reappropriate funds. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY, THE CARIBOU CITY COUNCIL 
1. That in addition to funds available in the Community Pool Improvement Fund, $50,545.54 is to be 

reappropriated toward completion of the of Teague Park Improvements as follows: 
a. $25,000 from Fund G-1-365-03 Parks Land Acquisitions/Easements 
b. $2,490.17 from Fund G-1-365-08 Recreation Non-appropriated Special Projects 
c. $10,000 from Fund G-1-365-13 Collins Pond Restoration Fund 
d. $1,551.08 from Fund G-1-365-16 Caribou Community Band 
e. $1,404.29 from Fund G-1-365-20 Caribou Ski Trail Program 
f. $10,000 from Fund G-1-399-00 Parking Lot Maintenance Reserve 

2. That, up to $228,415 be utilized from the City’s Resource Reserve Account, Fund G-1-450-00, for the 
purposes of funding the Park Improvements with conditions that:  

a. Any Resource Reserve funds used toward the Park Improvements are to be considered a loan 
against the Reserve funds, 

b. All Reserve Funds are to be paid back within 5-years of their use, and 
c. The city self-imposes an interest rate of 1.5% to be compounded annually in order maintain the 

reserve account value for future citizens. 
This resolution was duly passed and approved by a majority of the City Council of the City of Caribou this 

____th day of ___________ 2020.  

 

________________________________  __________________________________ 

R. Mark Goughan, Mayor    Attest: Danielle Brissette, City Clerk 

[City Seal]    

78



Resolution No. 11-03-2020 

A RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING THE FEE SCHEDULE FOR CARIBOU CITY 

WHEREAS, The governing body of the City of Caribou, Maine, acknowledges that the fees 

required of various developers, subdividers, property owners, and citizenry of the city necessitate 

periodic review; and 

WHEREAS, review of these fees has been found to be warranted in certain areas as they have 

gone without update or alteration for an extended period of time; and 

WHERAS, the City Council of Caribou desires to make adjustments where necessary to the 

Caribou City Fee Schedule in order to ensure proper and adequate services to its citizens; 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of Caribou, that the following 

fees shall be established for various development projects and services rendered by employees 

and volunteers of the City, and shall be collected at the submittal of an application or request for 

action for which the fee has been designated herein:  

79



A. The fees charged by the City for 

services rendered to the community 

shall be as follows: 

Airport: 

Hangar A1   $120.00 

Hangar A2   $120.00 

Hangar C1  $175.00 200.00 

Hangar C2  $170.00 180.00 

Hangar C3  $160.00 165.00 

Hangar C4  $160.00 165.00 

Hangar C5  $170.00 180.00 

Hangar C6  $175.00 200.00 

Hangars A or C Non-Aviation Related 

Monthly Storage Rate          Base+$50 

Hangar B Annual          $2,400.00 

Hangar B ½ Year          $1,500.00 

Hangar B Summer: 

 Night   $  20.00 

 Week   $100.00 

 Month   $300.00 

Hangar B Winter: 

 Night   $  40.00 

 Week   $150.00 

 Month   $350.00 

Annual Office Space  Negotiable 

 

Clerk’s Office (all by State Statute): 

Recording of Partnership $10.00 

Lineage Verification  $  3.00 

Marriage License  $40.00 

Military Discharge Filing $  4.00 

Permits for Disposition of  $20.00 

Human Remains  

Recording of Proprietorship $10.00 

Vital Records  

Birth    $15.00  

Death   $15.00  

Marriage  $15.00 

Each additional $  6.00  

Vital Records Search  $  6.00 

(this fee was set by Council) 

if record is found, $6.00 fee  

includes a non-certified copy  

 

Municipal Agent Fees for  

Motor Vehicle Registrations: 

Renewals – Caribou   $  5.00 

Renewals – Connor TWP $  6.00 

Code Enforcement: 

Building Permit  $   50.00 

Certificate of Occupancy $   25.00 

Sign Permit (per permit) $   50.00 

Plumbing Permit (set by State Statute)  

    75% Caribou 

   25% State 

Shellfish Surcharge  $15.00  
(full system – external only) 

Site Design Application  

$90.00 + $10.00/2,000 sq ft 

Demolition Permit  $  250.00 
(waived if received in advance) 

Subdivision App  

First three Lots  $180.00 

Each additional Lot     +$10.00  

Misc. Inspection Service $  40.00 

 

Rezoning Request  $100.00 

Code Amendment Request $100.00 

 

Fire & Ambulance: 
 

Ambulance Charges: 
 

Billing Code:  Current Charges:  

A0428 BLSN   $313.00   

A0428 BLSN-Non  $342.00   

A0429 BLS- Emer  $492.00  

A0426 ALS1   $372.00   

A0427 ALS1-Emer  $588.00    

A0427 ALS Backup  $492.00  

A0433 ALS2   $852.00   

A0434 SPCare  $1,008.00   

A0429 AWT   $492.00   

A0425 Land Mile   $14.00 
    

Non-Mutual Aid Community Ambulance 

Charge $500.00 (Effective January 1, 2020) 
 

Outside Community No Transport Charge 

$313.00 (Effective January 1, 2020) 

 

 

 

 

Fire Department Charges: 
 

Fire Reports   $10.00  

Fire Permits    $10.00 

80



City of Caribou 

FEE SCHEDULE 

 

Library: 

Copies: 

Black & White  $  0.25 

Color     $  0.75 

Fax (outgoing/incoming or scan to email) 

  First page  $  2.00 

Each additional  $  1.00 

New Card   $  1.00 

 

Oversize Printer  $1.50/sq.ft. 

 

Homeschool discounted price for 

copying/printing educational materials 

 Black & White $0.15 

 Color   $0.50 

 Oversize  $0.75/sf.ft. 

 

Fines: 

Books/Magazines/CDs  $  0.10/day 

DVDs     $  1.00/day 

 

Inter-Library Loans: 

Free if via van delivery or postage (usually 

$2.50-$3.50) if mailed to library (usually out 

of state books) 

Laminating   $  2.00/sheet 

 

Caribou Room Rental: 

1 hour    $12.00 

2-4 hours (half day)   $40.00 flat fee 

4+ hours (full day)   $75.00 flat fee 

Projector (PC adapter) $10.00 

External Speakers  $  5.00 

 

Resident Fee:   $  0.00/year 

Non-Resident Fee: 

Individual    $30.00/year 

Family    $40.00/year 

Veteran – Individual  $25.00/year 

Veteran – Family  $35.00/year 

 

 

 

Miscellaneous Admin Fees: 

Notary Fee (per signature) $  5.00  

Faxes – First page  $  4.00 

   Additional pages $  1.50 

Copies – 8.5x11  $  0.75 

Copies – 8.5x14, 11x17 $  1.00 

Wedding   $75.00 

 

Police Department: 

Accident Reports  $10.00 

BackgroundChecks  $5.00  

Incident Cards - first page $5.00  

Each additional   $1.00  

Fingerprints   $3.00 

Fireworks Permit   $5.00 

Dog Pick Up Fee  $10.00  

Concealed Carry Permit  $20 

renew 

$35 new 

Lamination   $5.00  

Fireworks Permit  $5.00  

Prisoner Fees   $60.00  

Prisoner Meals   $8.00  

For parking violations, see Code Book, 

Chapter 12 Traffic  

 

Rec Department: 

$10 per child per program residents 

$25 per child per program non-residents 

Youth Programs –   Resident  Varies 

Non-Resident $15.00 above 

Resident Fee 

$8 per child t-shirt 

$9 per child t-shirt & mouth guard 

 

Take It Outside Series-Adult Program Fees: 

Deep Sea Fishing               $150.00 

Moosehead Lake Trip      $55.00 

Botanical Gardens            $40.00 

Grand Falls Gorge             $50.00 

Kings Landing                      $40.00 

McAdam Station                $40.00 

Allagash Ghost Trains      $99.00 

Chandler Lakes Camp      $40.00 

Chimney Pond Hike          $20.00 

Libbys Camps                      $40.00 

Red River Camps               $60.00 

Square Lake                         $30.00 

Scopan Mtn Hike               $20.00 

Deboullie Mtn Hike          $20.00 

Smyrna Amish Village     $40.00 

Pottery                                  $50.00 

81



City of Caribou 

FEE SCHEDULE 

 

Katahdin Woods                $30.00 

Gaspe Peninsula                $200.00 

Bradford Camps                 $40.00 

Bat Houses                          $25.00 

Wreath Making                $40.00 

EMERA Audit                 $5.00 

 

Recreation Center  

Membership Fees - Resident Free 

Non-Resident Free 

Rental Fees: 

$15 per hour for building rental 

$15 per hour for supervisor (non-operational 

hours) 

 

Tax Assessment: 

Assessment Card/  $0.50 

Document (black & white) 

 

Assessment Card/  $1.00 

Document (color)   

 

Frequent Users   $0.25 B&W 

(making own copies)  $0.50 Color 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

82



Fi
re

 S
ta

ti
o

n
 S

tr
u

ct
u

ra
l U

p
gr

ad
es

2
7

7
4

5
%

P
ro

je
ct

 w
ill

 b
e 

co
m

p
le

te
d

 S
u

m
m

er
 2

0
2

1

A
m

b
u

la
to

ry
 S

er
vi

ce
 C

o
n

tr
ac

ts
2

2
5

1
0

0
%

N
ew

 c
o

n
tr

ac
t 

ra
te

s 
in

st
it

u
te

d
 M

ar
ch

 2
0

2
0

 a
n

d
 r

en
ew

ed
 f

o
r 

2
0

2
1

.

C
ar

ib
o

u
 P

D
 e

st
ab

lis
h

ed
 a

 K
9

 u
n

it
. O

ff
ic

er
 K

eg
an

 M
cP

h
er

so
n

 a
n

d
 K

9
 A

ce
 a

tt
en

d
ed

 8
 

w
ee

ks
 o

f 
tr

ai
n

in
g 

to
 b

ec
o

m
e 

th
e 

fi
rs

t 
d

ru
g 

d
o

g 
th

e 
C

it
y 

o
f 

C
ar

ib
o

u
 h

as
 e

ve
r 

h
ad

. A
ce

 

h
as

 b
ee

n
 in

 s
er

vi
ce

 s
in

ce
 e

ar
ly

 S
ep

te
m

b
er

 a
n

d
 h

as
 a

lr
ea

d
y 

m
ad

e 
m

u
lt

ip
le

 d
ru

g 

se
iz

u
re

s.

C
ar

ib
o

u
 P

D
 p

ar
tn

er
ed

 w
it

h
 t

h
e 

C
ar

y 
M

ed
ic

al
 C

en
te

r 
R

u
ra

l R
ec

o
ve

ry
 N

et
w

o
rk

 T
ea

m
 a

n
d

 

O
ff

ic
er

s 
co

m
p

le
te

d
 o

ve
r 

1
5

0
 h

o
u

rs
 o

f 
C

EA
SE

 A
N

D
 D

ES
IS

T:
 U

N
D

ER
ST

A
N

D
IN

G
 

A
D

D
IC

TI
O

N
 A

N
D

 R
EC

O
V

ER
Y 

tr
ai

n
in

g.
 T

h
is

 h
as

 p
ro

ve
n

 t
o

 b
e 

b
en

ef
ic

ia
l t

o
 O

ff
ic

er
s 

as
 

th
ey

 d
ea

l w
it

h
 p

eo
p

le
 s

u
ff

er
in

g 
fr

o
m

 s
u

b
st

an
ce

 u
se

 d
is

o
rd

er
, o

ve
rd

o
se

s,
 p

eo
p

le
 in

 

p
o

ss
es

si
o

n
 o

f 
d

ru
gs

 f
am

ili
es

 a
ff

ec
te

d
. 

C
h

ie
f 

G
ah

ag
an

 s
er

ve
d

 o
n

 m
an

y 
ad

vi
so

ry
 b

o
ar

d
s 

an
d

 t
as

k 
fo

rc
es

 in
 2

0
2

0
 a

s 
a 

vo
ic

e 
fo

r 

la
w

 e
n

fo
rc

em
en

t 
fo

r 
al

l a
sp

ec
ts

 o
f 

su
b

st
an

ce
 u

se
 d

is
o

rd
er

. H
e 

se
rv

ed
 o

n
 t

h
e 

b
o

ar
d

 f
o

r 

th
e 

G
o

ve
rn

o
r’

s 
ap

p
o

in
te

d
 O

p
io

id
 D

ru
g 

Ta
sk

 F
o

rc
e 

(w
h

ic
h

 w
as

 r
e-

es
ta

b
lis

h
ed

 in
 2

0
2

0
 

af
te

r 
a 

2
 y

ea
r 

h
ia

tu
s)

, s
er

ve
d

 a
s 

an
 a

d
vi

so
ry

 m
em

b
er

 f
o

r 
th

e 
lo

ca
l m

al
e 

so
b

er
 h

o
u

se
, 

se
rv

ed
 a

s 
an

 a
d

vi
so

ry
 m

em
b

er
 f

o
r 

R
ec

o
ve

ry
 A

ro
o

st
o

o
k 

(w
h

o
 a

re
 v

er
y 

ac
ti

ve
 in

 t
h

e 

co
m

m
u

n
it

y)
, s

er
ve

d
 o

n
 t

h
e 

d
ru

g 
ta

sk
 f

o
rc

e 
fo

r 
th

e 
lo

ca
l M

ic
m

ac
 t

ri
b

e 
to

 u
p

d
at

e 
th

ei
r 

p
o

lic
ie

s 
an

d
 p

ro
ce

d
u

re
s 

re
la

ti
n

g 
to

 s
u

b
st

an
ce

s 
an

d
 u

se
, a

n
d

 s
er

ve
d

 o
n

 t
h

e 
D

ru
g 

Fr
ee

 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s 
an

d
 P

o
w

er
 o

f 
P

re
ve

n
ti

o
n

 b
o

ar
d

s.
 C

h
ie

f 
G

ah
ag

an
 is

 a
n

 a
d

vo
ca

te
 f

o
r 

p
eo

p
le

 s
u

ff
er

in
g 

fr
o

m
 S

U
D

 a
n

d
 a

ct
iv

el
y 

w
o

rk
s 

co
lla

b
o

ra
ti

ve
ly

 f
o

r 
h

ar
m

 r
ed

u
ct

io
n

 a
n

d
 

p
re

ve
n

ti
o

n
.

A
ll 

O
ff

ic
er

s 
ar

e 
tr

ai
n

ed
 t

o
 a

d
m

in
is

te
r 

N
ar

ca
n

 (
a 

lif
e 

sa
vi

n
g 

d
ru

g 
u

se
d

 d
u

ri
n

g 
so

m
eo

n
e 

w
h

o
 is

 a
ct

iv
el

y 
o

ve
rd

o
si

n
g 

o
n

 a
n

 o
p

ia
te

).

Se
rg

ea
n

t 
C

h
ad

 C
o

ch
ra

n
 c

o
n

d
u

ct
ed

 m
u

lt
ip

le
 e

m
p

lo
ye

r 
d

ru
g 

an
d

 im
p

ai
rm

en
t 

re
co

gn
it

io
n

 t
ra

in
in

gs
 f

o
r 

lo
ca

l b
u

si
n

es
se

s.
 O

ff
ic

er
 K

ev
in

 S
t.

 P
et

er
 p

ro
vi

d
ed

 

R
ES

P
O

N
SI

B
LE

 B
EV

ER
A

G
E 

SE
R

V
IC

E 
(R

B
S)

 t
ra

in
in

gs
 t

o
 lo

ca
l a

lc
o

h
o

l r
et

ai
le

rs
. A

lc
o

h
o

l i
s 

st
ill

 t
h

e 
n

u
m

b
er

 o
n

e 
su

b
st

an
ce

 a
b

u
se

d
.

A
d

d
it

io
n

al
 e

ff
o

rt
s 

th
ro

u
gh

 c
o

d
e 

en
fo

rc
em

en
t 

an
d

 b
u

ild
in

g 
o

ff
ic

ia
l t

o
 a

d
d

re
ss

 n
u

is
an

ce
 

an
d

 b
lig

h
te

d
 p

ro
p

er
ti

es
 w

h
er

e 
d

ru
g 

is
su

es
 a

ls
o

 t
ak

e 
p

la
ce

.

P
o

lic
e 

St
at

io
n

 D
e

si
gn

 a
n

d
 R

ef
er

e
n

d
u

m
1

2
3

2
5

%

W
o

rk
 t

o
w

ar
d

 r
ee

st
ab

lis
h

in
g 

o
u

r 
n

ee
d

s 
fo

r 
a 

n
ew

 P
o

lic
e 

St
at

io
n

 u
si

n
g 

th
e 

re
co

m
m

en
d

at
io

n
 f

ro
m

 “
A

rt
if

ex
 a

n
d

 M
W

 S
tu

d
io

s 
P

u
b

lic
 S

af
et

y 
A

rc
h

it
ec

tu
re

s”
 f

o
r 

si
ze

 

an
d

 f
u

n
ct

io
n

al
it

y.

P
U

B
LI

C
 S

A
FE

TY
 P

R
IO

R
IT

IE
S

5
O

p
io

id
 a

n
d

 D
ru

g 
En

fo
rc

em
en

t
2

0

St
at

u
s/

 

C
o

m
p

le
ti

o
n

 %
N

o
te

s

O
n

-g
o

in
g

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

Sc
o

ri
n

g

C
o

u
n

ci
lo

r 

V
o

te
s

83



Fa
ci

lit
y 

M
ai

n
te

n
an

ce
 A

u
d

it
s/

P
la

n
s

1
5

7

C
o

m
p

le
te

C
ri

te
ri

u
m

 B
ro

w
n

 r
ep

o
rt

s 
co

m
p

le
te

d
 S

ep
te

m
b

er
 2

0
2

0
. 

B
u

ild
in

g 
sa

fe
ty

 c
o

m
m

it
te

e 
le

d
 b

y 
b

u
ild

in
g 

o
ff

ic
ia

l a
n

d
 a

d
m

in
is

tr
at

iv
e 

as
si

st
an

t 

co
m

p
le

te
d

 w
al

k 
th

ro
u

gh
s 

o
f 

ea
ch

 f
ac

ili
ty

 a
n

d
 p

re
p

ar
ed

 u
p

d
at

ed
 r

ep
o

rt
s 

fo
r 

st
at

e 

sa
fe

ty
 p

ro
gr

am
s.

Si
d

ew
al

ks
 a

n
d

 P
ed

st
ri

an
 S

af
et

y
1

9
5

O
n

-g
o

in
g

N
ew

 w
al

ks
 in

st
al

le
d

 o
n

 s
o

u
th

 M
ai

n
 a

n
d

 G
le

n
 w

it
h

 m
aj

o
r 

p
ro

je
ct

s.

C
ap

it
al

 E
q

u
ip

m
e

n
t 

P
la

n
1

8
5

O
n

-g
o

in
g

C
ap

it
al

 a
ss

et
t 

lis
t 

m
ai

n
ta

in
ed

. 

O
th

er
: S

tr
e

et
 L

ig
h

ts
 in

 D
ar

k 
A

re
as

1
8

5
O

n
-g

o
in

g
1

0
 n

ew
 lo

ca
ti

o
n

s 
re

q
u

es
te

d
. W

ai
ti

n
g 

o
n

 c
o

n
tr

ac
to

r 
to

 in
st

al
l.

A
ir

p
o

rt
 D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t
9

3
O

n
-g

o
in

g

C
lo

su
re

 o
f 

tr
ai

le
r 

p
ar

k 
in

it
ia

te
d

. N
ew

 f
u

el
 s

ys
te

m
 a

n
d

 o
p

er
at

io
n

 m
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g 

sy
st

em
s.

 

R
ec

ei
ve

d
 $

2
0

,0
0

0
 g

ra
n

t 
to

 u
se

 f
o

r 
ge

n
er

al
 n

ee
d

s.

R
iv

er
 R

o
ad

 R
ec

o
n

st
ru

ct
io

n
7

3
O

n
-g

o
in

g
C

o
n

ti
n

u
e 

to
 m

o
n

it
o

r 
ro

ad
, n

eg
o

ti
at

e 
w

it
h

 p
ro

p
er

ty
 o

w
n

er
s 

an
d

 s
ee

k 
fu

n
d

in
g.

N
o

rt
h

 M
ai

n
e 

R
ec

o
n

st
ru

ct
io

n
7

2
C

o
m

p
le

te
W

ai
ti

n
g 

fo
r 

D
O

T 
fu

n
d

in
g 

re
im

b
u

rs
em

en
t 

to
 c

lo
se

 o
u

t 
p

ro
je

ct
.

6
0

 A
cc

es
s 

H
ig

h
w

ay
 R

eu
se

6
2

O
n

-g
o

in
g

P
ro

p
er

ty
 w

as
 s

o
ld

. W
o

rk
in

g 
w

it
h

 n
ew

 o
w

n
er

 o
n

 b
u

ild
in

g 
re

u
se

 p
er

m
it

s.
 

O
th

er
: G

at
ew

ay
 E

n
h

an
ce

m
en

ts

2
1

O
n

-g
o

in
g

2
 p

ro
p

er
ti

es
 n

ea
r 

Fo
rt

 R
o

ad
 a

n
d

 R
te

 1
 c

le
an

ed
 u

p
. W

h
ile

 t
h

e 
co

n
tr

ac
to

r 
w

as
 t

h
er

e 
o

n
 

si
te

, w
e 

w
er

e 
ab

le
 t

o
 n

eg
o

ti
at

e 
w

it
h

 M
D

O
T 

an
d

 h
av

e 
se

ve
ra

l t
re

e’
s 

re
m

o
ve

d
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e 

ri
gh

t 
o

f 
w

ay
, a

llo
w

in
g 

fo
r 

m
u

ch
 b

et
te

r 
vi

si
b

ili
ty

 w
it

h
 r

ec
re

at
io

n
al

 v
eh

ic
le

s 
co

m
in

g 
o

ff
 

th
e 

P
at

te
n

 s
tr

ee
t 

ra
m

p
 a

n
d

 o
n

to
 F

o
rt

 B
ri

d
ge

.

O
ve

rl
ay

 o
f 

H
w

ys
 in

 U
rb

an
 C

o
m

p
ac

t 
Zo

n
e

2
1

C
o

m
p

le
te

P
o

rt
io

n
s 

o
f 

M
ai

n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
. S

w
ed

en
 S

tr
ee

t 
o

ve
rl

ay
ed

 t
o

 H
ig

h
 S

ch
o

o
l.

P
u

b
lic

 P
ar

ki
n

g 
Lo

t 
R

es
u

rf
ac

in
g

2
1

O
n

-g
o

in
g

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
 C

it
y 

H
al

l a
n

d
 d

o
w

n
to

w
n

 m
al

l p
ar

ki
n

g 
lo

ts
.

St
o

rm
 D

ra
in

 S
ys

te
m

 In
ve

n
to

ry
0

0
N

ee
d

 t
o

 f
o

rm
al

iz
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n

 a
n

d
 p

re
p

ar
e 

fo
r 

d
is

se
m

in
at

io
n

 a
n

d
 s

tu
d

y.

C
it

y 
H

al
l A

cc
es

si
b

ili
ty

0
0

O
n

-g
o

in
g

El
em

en
ts

 id
en

fi
ed

 w
it

h
 c

ap
it

al
 f

ac
ili

ty
 s

tu
d

y.
 S

ch
ed

u
le

d
 f

o
r 

2
0

2
1

-2
0

2
2

 w
o

rk
.

In
fr

as
tr

u
cu

tr
e

84



Te
ag

u
e 

P
ar

k 
C

o
n

st
ru

ct
io

n
 C

o
m

p
le

ti
o

n
2

4
5

O
n

-g
o

in
g

9
8

%
 R

SU
 s

id
e 

co
m

p
le

te
. B

id
s 

re
ce

iv
ed

 f
o

r 
sp

la
sh

 p
ad

 a
n

d
 o

ve
rf

lo
w

 p
ar

ki
n

g 
lo

t

C
o

lli
n

s 
P

o
n

d
 D

am
 &

 T
ra

il 
Sy

st
e

m
1

7
5

O
n

-h
o

ld

P
an

d
em

ic
 li

m
it

ed
 F

is
h

 a
n

d
 w

ild
lif

e 
ag

en
cy

 t
ra

ve
l s

o
 w

e 
w

er
e 

n
o

t 
ab

le
 t

o
 g

et
 a

 s
u

rv
ey

 

d
o

n
e 

o
f 

th
e 

ar
ea

.  
W

e 
ar

e 
in

 h
o

p
es

 t
h

at
 w

e 
ca

n
 g

et
 s

o
m

et
h

in
g 

d
o

n
e 

n
ex

t 
sp

ri
n

g.
  S

ta
ff

 

w
o

rk
ig

n
 o

n
 a

 L
A

W
C

O
N

 g
ra

n
t 

to
 h

el
p

 w
it

h
 f

u
n

d
in

g.

G
at

ew
ay

 E
n

h
an

ce
m

en
ts

1
4

4
O

n
-g

o
in

g

W
o

rk
ed

 o
n

 F
o

rt
 R

d
 &

 R
te

 1
 p

ro
p

er
ty

, s
ec

u
re

d
 g

ra
n

t 
fo

r 
6

6
0

' o
f 

tr
ai

l f
en

ci
n

g 
o

n
 L

o
w

er
 

Ly
n

d
o

n

Th
u

rs
d

ay
s 

o
n

 S
w

ed
en

1
1

4
R

es
ch

ed
u

le
d

P
an

d
em

ic
 li

m
it

at
io

n
s.

 F
o

cu
s 

sh
if

te
d

 t
o

 p
u

b
lic

 e
n

ga
ge

m
en

t 
an

d
 s

m
al

le
r 

ev
en

ts
.

O
th

er
: M

ar
at

h
o

n
; i

n
cr

ea
se

 r
u

n
n

er
s 

&
 

Sp
o

n
so

rs
9

4
R

es
ch

ed
u

le
d

P
an

d
em

ic
 li

m
it

at
io

n
s.

 F
o

cu
s 

sh
if

te
d

 t
o

 p
u

b
lic

 e
n

ga
ge

m
en

t 
an

d
 s

m
al

le
r 

ev
en

ts
.

N
yl

an
d

er
 In

ve
n

to
ry

 &
 O

p
er

at
io

n
s

5
3

O
n

-g
o

in
g

P
an

d
em

ic
 li

m
it

at
io

n
s.

 In
ve

n
to

ry
 o

n
-g

o
in

g 
w

it
h

 V
IS

TA
 w

o
rk

er
 a

n
d

 B
o

ar
d

. N
ew

 s
et

 o
f 

ra
ili

n
gs

 f
o

r 
th

e 
h

an
d

ic
ap

 r
am

p
.  

A
ll 

w
in

d
o

w
 s

cr
ee

n
s 

re
p

ai
re

d
.

Li
b

ra
ry

 B
u

si
n

es
s 

R
es

o
u

rc
e 

C
e

n
te

r
6

2
O

n
-g

o
in

g
P

an
d

em
ic

 li
m

it
at

io
n

s.
 R

ef
o

cu
se

d
 t

o
 o

n
-l

in
e 

p
ro

gr
am

m
in

g 
an

d
 o

u
tr

ea
ch

Li
b

ra
ry

 P
ro

gr
am

s
4

2
O

n
-g

o
in

g
P

an
d

em
ic

 li
m

it
at

io
n

s.
 R

ef
o

cu
se

d
 t

o
 o

n
-l

in
e 

p
ro

gr
am

m
in

g 
an

d
 o

u
tr

ea
ch

M
ai

n
e 

2
0

0
 S

to
ry

te
lli

n
g 

Fe
st

iv
al

0
0

O
n

-g
o

in
g

St
at

e 
re

co
gn

it
io

n
 in

 M
ai

n
e 

To
w

n
s 

an
d

 C
it

y 
M

ag
az

in
e!

 P
o

st
p

o
n

ed
 d

u
e 

to
 C

O
V

ID

Th
e 

en
ti

re
 g

ym
n

as
iu

m
 w

as
 c

o
m

p
le

te
ly

 r
ep

ai
n

te
d

, S
ta

ff
 o

ff
ic

e,
 h

al
lw

ay
, a

n
d

 g
am

er
o

o
m

 

al
l p

ai
n

te
d

 in
 h

o
u

se
.  

N
ew

 p
er

im
et

er
 L

ED
 li

gh
ts

 w
er

e 
ad

d
ed

 in
 t

h
e 

gy
m

 a
s 

th
is

 w
as

 a
 

ve
ry

 d
ar

k 
ar

ea
.  

 N
ew

 s
ec

u
ri

ty
 c

am
er

as
 w

er
e 

al
so

 u
p

gr
ad

ed
.  

 T
h

e 
lo

ck
er

 r
o

o
m

s 
al

so
 

go
t 

a 
co

m
p

le
te

 m
ak

e 
o

ve
r.

Ea
gl

e 
Sc

o
u

t 
p

ro
je

ct
s 

th
at

 c
am

e 
to

 li
gh

t 
w

er
e 

th
e 

P
ai

n
ti

n
g 

o
f 

th
e 

P
au

l S
o

u
cy

 m
em

o
ri

al
 

b
u

ild
in

g 
lo

ca
te

d
 o

n
 S

in
co

ck
 s

tr
ee

t 
an

d
 t

h
e 

p
ai

n
ti

n
g 

o
f 

th
e 

en
ti

re
 C

o
lli

n
s 

p
o

n
d

 b
u

ild
in

g.
  

A
n

o
th

er
 S

co
u

t 
p

ro
je

ct
 t

o
o

k 
p

la
ce

 a
t 

N
o

rt
h

 C
ar

ib
o

u
 P

ar
k,

 t
h

is
 p

ro
je

ct
 w

as
 t

ri
m

m
in

g 
o

f 

b
ig

 s
p

ru
ce

 t
re

es
, p

ai
n

ti
n

g 
o

f 
th

e 
p

ic
n

ic
 t

ab
le

s 
an

d
 c

le
an

in
g 

u
p

 t
h

e 
w

al
ki

n
g 

p
at

h
s.

In
st

al
la

ti
o

n
 o

f 
a 

n
ew

 f
la

g 
p

o
le

 a
t 

C
it

y 
H

al
l.

In
st

al
la

ti
o

n
 o

f 
lig

h
ts

 in
 t

h
e 

D
o

w
n

to
w

n
 M

al
l a

re
a 

af
te

r 
co

o
rd

in
at

in
g 

w
it

h
 b

u
si

n
es

se
s 

an
d

 

ac
q

u
ir

in
g 

lo
n

g 
te

rm
 m

ai
n

te
n

an
ce

 e
as

em
en

t 
fr

o
m

 t
h

em
.

In
st

al
la

ti
o

n
 o

f 
C

h
ri

st
m

as
 S

w
ag

s 
fo

r 
th

e 
h

o
lid

ay
s.

0

LE
IS

U
R

E 
SE

R
V

IC
E 

P
R

IO
R

IT
IE

S

O
th

er
:

0

85



U
n

io
n

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

N
e

go
ti

at
io

n
s

2
2

6

O
n

-g
o

in
g

Tw
o

 p
at

ro
l g

ri
ev

an
ce

s 
re

la
te

d
 t

o
 c

o
n

tr
ac

t 
in

te
rp

re
ta

ti
o

n
 u

n
re

so
lv

ed
. A

w
ai

ti
n

g 

ar
b

it
ra

ti
o

n
 d

at
es

 f
o

r 
P

W
 c

o
n

tr
ac

t.
 F

ir
e 

u
n

io
n

 r
eq

u
es

te
d

 t
o

 s
ta

rt
 2

0
2

1
 n

eg
o

ti
at

io
n

s.

H
ea

lt
h

 In
su

ra
n

ce
 C

h
an

ge
s

1
5

5
O

n
-g

o
in

g
W

o
rk

in
g 

w
it

h
 M

M
A

 o
n

 n
ew

 p
la

n
 o

p
ti

o
n

s.
 

B
u

d
ge

t 
P

re
p

ar
at

io
n

 P
ro

ce
ss

 C
h

an
ge

s
1

4
4

C
o

m
p

le
te

C
h

ar
te

r 
am

en
d

m
en

t 
p

re
p

ar
ed

 a
n

d
 p

as
se

d
 a

t 
N

o
ve

m
b

er
 e

le
ct

io
n

FB
O

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
at

 A
ir

p
o

rt
1

3
4

O
n

-g
o

in
g

N
o

 r
es

p
o

n
se

 t
o

 a
d

ve
rt

is
em

en
ts

. I
n

 h
o

u
se

 le
as

e 
m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g 
p

ro
ce

d
u

re
s 

ad
o

p
te

d

O
th

er
: F

ix
 $

2
.2

M
 N

et
 In

cr
ea

se
 in

 3
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
ts

1
3

3
O

n
-g

o
in

g

P
re

lim
in

ar
y 

2
0

2
1

 b
u

d
ge

t 
p

ro
ce

ss
 h

o
ld

s 
th

re
e 

m
aj

o
r 

d
ep

ar
tm

en
ts

 t
o

 p
ri

o
r 

ye
ar

 b
u

d
ge

t 

le
ve

ls

P
ro

cu
re

m
en

t 
P

o
lic

y
1

1
3

O
n

-g
o

in
g

D
o

cu
m

en
t 

u
n

d
er

 r
ev

ie
w

 b
y 

ci
ty

's
 a

u
d

it
o

rs
 a

n
d

 w
ill

 b
e 

p
re

se
n

te
d

 f
o

r 
2

0
2

1
 C

o
u

n
ci

l 

d
is

cu
ss

io
n

 a
n

d
 a

ct
io

n
.

N
o

n
-U

n
io

n
 C

o
m

p
en

sa
ti

o
n

 P
o

lic
y

8
3

O
n

-g
o

in
g

W
ag

e 
ra

te
s 

u
p

d
at

ed
 w

it
h

 la
te

st
 n

at
io

n
al

, s
ta

te
, a

n
d

 r
eg

io
n

al
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n
. A

d
d

it
io

n
al

 

in
cr

ea
se

 a
n

d
 a

d
ju

st
m

en
t 

p
ro

ce
d

u
re

s 
n

ee
d

 t
o

 b
e 

ad
o

p
te

d
 b

y 
O

rd
in

an
ce

.

O
th

er
: S

u
cc

es
si

o
n

 P
la

n
n

in
g

2
1

O
n

-g
o

in
g

Tr
an

si
ti

o
n

ed
 t

o
 n

ew
 C

it
y 

C
le

rk
 a

n
d

 D
ep

u
ty

 p
o

si
ti

o
n

s 
af

te
r 

re
ti

re
m

en
ts

. M
u

lt
ip

le
 

re
ti

re
m

en
ts

 in
 P

o
lic

e 
d

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
an

d
 a

t 
th

e 
Li

b
ra

ry
.

Q
u

ar
te

rl
y 

Ta
x 

A
ss

es
si

n
g 

Im
p

lim
en

ta
ti

o
n

2
1

O
n

-g
o

in
g

A
d

d
it

io
n

al
 t

ra
in

in
g 

p
ro

vi
d

ed
 t

o
 A

ss
es

si
n

g 
d

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
to

 a
ch

ie
ve

 t
h

is
 g

o
al

. A
ss

es
so

r 

co
m

p
le

te
d

 t
ri

al
 r

u
n

 o
f 

q
u

ar
te

rl
y 

as
se

ss
in

g 
o

n
 m

u
lt

i-
fa

m
ily

 d
w

el
lin

gs
 in

 t
o

w
n

.

C
it

iz
en

s 
U

n
iv

er
si

ty
0

0
O

n
-g

o
in

g

G
ro

u
n

d
 w

o
rk

 la
id

 w
it

h
 t

h
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
lo

r-
el

ec
t 

o
ri

en
ta

ti
o

n
 m

ee
ti

n
gs

 t
o

 s
ta

rt
 t

h
is

 p
ro

gr
am

 

in
 2

0
2

1
.

O
th

er
:

0
0

O
n

-g
o

in
g

R
ed

u
ce

d
 t

o
ta

l o
p

er
at

io
n

 e
xp

en
d

it
u

re
s 

b
y 

m
o

re
 t

h
an

 $
2

5
0

,0
0

0

0
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

R
ec

al
l P

et
it

io
n

 m
an

ag
em

en
t 

an
d

 p
ro

ce
ss

in
g

0
0

O
n

-g
o

in
g

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

o
f 

C
O

V
ID

-1
9

 r
el

at
ed

 o
rd

er
s,

 la
w

s,
 p

ro
ce

d
u

re
s,

 p
er

so
n

n
el

 a
n

d
 p

u
b

lic
 

re
la

te
d

 is
su

es

A
D

M
IN

IS
TR

A
TI

O
N

 P
R

IO
R

IT
IE

S

86



O
th

er
: S

m
al

l B
u

si
n

es
s 

R
et

en
ti

o
n

2
2

6

O
n

-g
o

in
g

M
ar

ke
ti

n
g 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
an

d
 A

ss
es

si
n

g 
o

ff
ic

es
 h

av
e 

ge
n

er
at

ed
 t

h
o

ro
u

gh
 li

st
 o

f 
ex

is
ti

n
g 

b
u

si
n

es
se

s 
an

d
 a

va
ila

b
le

 b
u

si
n

es
s 

sp
ac

es
 a

lo
n

g 
w

it
h

 c
o

n
ta

ct
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n
. W

o
rk

in
g 

w
it

h
 d

o
w

n
to

w
n

 s
ta

ke
h

o
ld

er
 g

ro
u

p
s 

to
 a

d
d

re
ss

 S
w

ed
en

 S
tr

ee
t 

n
ee

d
s.

  A
ss

es
si

n
g 

d
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

co
n

ta
ct

ed
 e

ac
h

 b
u

si
n

es
se

s 
an

d
 h

el
p

ed
 t

h
em

 a
p

p
ly

 f
o

r 
B

ET
E 

ta
x 

re
lie

f.

O
th

er
: B

lig
h

t 
R

em
o

va
l

2
1

5

O
n

-g
o

in
g

Fi
n

is
h

ed
 B

lig
h

t 
To

o
lk

it
. C

o
n

ti
n

u
e 

to
 w

o
rk

 o
n

 B
ir

d
se

ye
 e

n
vi

ro
n

m
en

ta
l c

le
an

u
p

 is
su

es
. 

D
em

o
lis

h
ed

 s
ev

en
 h

o
m

es
 in

 2
0

2
0

. R
et

u
rn

ed
 m

an
y 

ta
x 

ac
q

u
ir

ed
 p

ro
p

er
ti

es
 b

ac
k 

to
 

p
ri

va
te

 o
w

n
er

sh
ip

.

La
n

d
b

an
k 

C
re

at
io

n
1

7
5

O
n

-g
o

in
g

D
ra

ft
 c

re
at

io
n

 o
rd

in
an

ce
 is

 p
re

p
ar

ed
 a

n
d

 u
n

d
er

 r
ev

ie
w

 b
y 

le
ga

l c
o

u
n

se
l

Fa
ça

d
e 

Im
p

ro
ve

m
en

t 
G

ra
n

ts
1

6
4

C
o

m
p

le
te

R
ew

ro
te

 g
u

id
el

in
es

 a
n

d
 f

ad
ac

e 
im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

p
ro

gr
am

 s
ta

n
d

ar
d

s.

D
o

w
n

to
w

n
 R

ev
it

al
iz

at
io

n

1
0

4

O
n

-g
o

in
g

M
u

lt
ip

le
 f

aç
ad

e 
im

p
ro

ve
m

en
ts

 t
o

 S
w

ed
en

 S
tr

ee
t 

b
u

si
n

es
se

s 
in

 2
0

2
0

. R
ev

is
ed

 s
tr

ip
in

g 

p
la

n
 f

o
r 

m
o

re
 p

ed
es

tr
ia

n
 a

n
d

 b
u

si
n

es
s 

fr
ie

n
d

ly
 t

ra
ff

ic
 p

at
te

rn
s.

 C
o

n
ti

n
u

e 
to

 a
d

vo
ca

te
 

fo
r 

an
d

 p
ro

m
o

te
 a

va
ila

b
le

 s
p

ac
es

 o
n

 S
w

ed
en

 S
tr

ee
t.

O
th

er
: C

EG
C

8
4

O
n

-g
o

in
g

C
o

n
ti

n
u

e 
to

 a
tt

en
d

 a
n

d
 w

o
rk

 w
it

h
 C

EG
C

 a
s 

p
ar

tn
er

 o
rg

an
iz

at
io

n
 a

n
d

 c
at

al
ys

t 
gr

o
u

p
 f

o
r 

ec
o

n
o

m
ic

 d
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

ac
ti

vi
ti

es
.

O
th

er
: U

ti
liz

e
 N

M
D

C
 a

n
d

 C
h

am
b

er
 M

o
re

5
2

O
n

-g
o

in
g

W
o

rk
in

g 
cl

o
se

ly
 w

it
h

 N
M

D
C

 s
ta

ff
 o

n
 s

ta
te

 t
ra

il 
in

it
ia

ti
ve

s,
 r

ed
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

st
ra

te
gi

es
 

an
d

 f
u

n
d

in
g 

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s 

fo
r 

sm
al

l b
u

si
n

es
se

s.
 C

h
am

b
er

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

s 
an

d
 h

el
p

ed
 w

it
h

 

m
u

lt
ip

le
 r

ib
b

o
n

 c
u

tt
in

g 
ce

re
m

o
n

ie
s 

th
is

 y
ea

r.

R
en

ta
l A

ss
is

ta
n

ce
 P

ro
gr

am
2

2
O

n
-g

o
in

g
N

o
 a

d
d

it
io

n
al

 w
o

rk
 d

o
n

e 
o

n
 t

h
is

 p
ro

gr
am

Su
re

 S
it

e 
P

ro
gr

am
2

1

O
n

-g
o

in
g

A
s 

n
o

te
d

 u
n

d
er

 S
m

al
l b

u
si

n
es

s 
re

te
n

ti
o

n
, s

ta
ff

 h
as

 c
o

m
p

ile
d

 li
st

 o
f 

av
ai

la
b

le
 p

ro
p

er
ti

es
 

an
d

 h
el

p
ed

 t
o

 lo
ca

te
 b

u
si

n
es

se
s 

su
ch

 a
s 

P
ro

n
to

 B
u

rr
it

o
 a

n
d

 n
ew

 D
o

jo
 d

o
w

n
to

w
n

. 

C
u

rr
en

tl
y 

w
o

rk
in

g 
w

it
h

 o
th

er
 b

u
si

n
es

se
s 

as
 w

el
l.

B
u

ild
 Y

o
u

r 
B

u
si

n
es

s 
Se

ri
es

1
1

O
n

-g
o

in
g

St
af

f 
d

ev
el

o
p

ed
 b

u
ild

in
g 

yo
u

r 
o

w
n

 b
u

si
n

es
s 

ro
ad

m
ap

 a
n

d
 p

ro
vi

d
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n

 a
n

d
 

su
p

p
o

rt
 f

o
r 

st
ar

tu
p

s.
 In

cl
u

d
es

 a
ll 

ci
ty

 a
n

d
 p

ar
tn

er
 p

ro
ce

ss
es

.

W
at

er
fr

o
n

t 
R

ed
ev

el
o

p
m

e
n

t
1

1

O
n

-g
o

in
g

W
at

er
fr

o
n

t 
st

ak
eh

o
ld

er
 g

ro
u

p
 s

ta
rt

ed
 in

 S
ep

te
m

b
er

. G
ro

u
p

 lo
o

ki
n

g 
at

 v
ar

io
u

s 
la

n
d

 

u
se

s 
an

d
 h

u
rd

le
s 

to
 r

ed
ev

el
o

p
in

g 
th

e 
ri

ve
r 

fr
o

n
t 

b
et

w
ee

n
 D

o
w

 S
id

in
g 

an
d

 L
im

es
to

n
e 

St
re

et
.

EC
O

N
O

M
IC

 D
EV

EL
O

P
M

EN
T 

P
R

IO
R

IT
IE

S

87



EP
A

 B
ro

w
n

fi
e

ld
 G

ra
n

t 
fo

r 
B

ir
d

se
ye

2
0

5

O
n

-g
o

in
g

W
o

rk
ed

 w
it

h
 C

ES
 t

o
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 in

ve
st

ig
at

iv
e 

w
o

rk
 o

n
 s

it
e 

p
ile

s 
an

d
 h

av
e 

fi
n

al
 le

tt
er

 o
f 

ap
p

ro
va

l f
ro

m
 t

h
e 

st
at

e 
in

d
ic

at
in

g 
th

e 
ci

ty
 c

an
 r

eu
se

 t
h

e 
p

ro
p

er
ty

 f
o

r 
al

l b
u

t 
re

si
d

en
ti

al
 

u
se

s 
an

d
 n

o
 c

u
lin

ar
y 

w
el

ls
 a

llo
w

ed
. F

in
al

 c
le

an
u

p
 w

o
rk

 w
ill

 t
ak

e 
p

la
ce

 in
 S

ri
n

g 
2

0
2

1
. 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

m
as

te
r 

p
la

n
n

in
g 

ef
fo

rt
s 

n
ee

d
ed

 t
o

 d
et

er
m

in
e 

fu
tu

re
 la

n
d

 u
se

s.
 

In
ve

st
ig

at
iv

e 
ef

fo
rt

 s
av

ed
 o

ve
r 

$
5

0
0

,0
0

0
 o

f 
an

ti
ci

p
at

ed
 e

xp
en

se
s.

Zo
n

in
g 

R
eg

u
la

ti
o

n
s 

R
ew

ri
te

1
4

5

O
n

-g
o

in
g

A
ll 

ad
m

in
is

tr
at

iv
e 

el
em

en
ts

 h
av

e 
b

ee
n

 r
ev

ie
w

ed
 a

n
d

 n
ew

 z
o

n
e 

d
es

ig
n

at
io

n
s 

id
en

ti
fi

ed
. 

P
la

n
n

in
g 

B
o

ar
d

 n
ee

d
s 

w
o

rk
se

ss
io

n
s 

to
 r

ef
in

e 
la

n
d

 u
se

 t
ab

le
 a

n
d

 d
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

st
an

d
ar

d
s

B
u

si
n

es
s 

D
ir

ec
to

ry
 &

 N
ew

sl
e

tt
er

1
1

5
O

n
-g

o
in

g
se

e 
Ec

o
n

o
m

ic
 D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
ab

o
ve

.  
B

u
si

n
es

se
s 

N
ew

sl
et

te
r 

n
o

t 
ye

t 
d

ev
el

o
p

ed
.

B
lig

h
t 

R
em

o
va

l 
1

8
4

O
n

-g
o

in
g

se
e 

Ec
o

n
o

m
ic

 D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

ab
o

ve
.

B
lig

h
t 

Su
rv

ey
 o

f 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
1

2
4

C
o

m
p

le
te

P
la

n
n

in
g 

st
af

f 
co

m
p

le
te

d
 t

h
is

 s
u

rv
ey

 a
n

d
 it

's
 b

ee
n

 in
co

rp
o

ra
te

d
 in

to
 t

h
e 

b
lig

h
t 

to
o

lk
it

 

d
o

cu
m

en
t

R
ib

b
o

n
 C

u
tt

in
g 

C
e

re
m

o
n

ie
s

1
1

4
O

n
-g

o
in

g
se

e 
Ec

o
n

o
m

ic
 D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
ab

o
ve

.

C
o

m
p

le
te

 G
en

er
al

 P
la

n
 U

p
d

at
e

7
2

7
5

%

P
la

n
n

in
g 

st
af

f 
is

 f
in

is
h

in
g 

u
p

 t
h

e 
fu

tu
re

 la
n

d
 u

se
 e

le
m

en
t 

an
d

 p
re

p
ar

in
g 

ef
fo

rt
 f

o
r 

co
m

m
u

n
it

y 
o

u
tr

ea
ch

.

W
ee

kl
y 

B
u

si
n

es
s 

V
is

it
s 

(C
o

ff
ee

 w
it

h
 …

)

2
2

O
n

-g
o

in
g

B
et

w
ee

n
 M

ar
ke

ti
n

g 
an

d
 A

d
m

in
is

tr
at

io
n

 c
o

n
ta

ct
 h

as
 b

ee
n

 m
ad

e 
w

it
h

 m
an

y 
n

ew
 a

n
d

 

o
ld

 b
u

si
n

es
se

s 
in

 t
o

w
n

 e
ac

h
 w

ee
k.

 D
is

cu
ss

io
n

s 
h

av
e 

in
cl

u
d

ed
 c

it
y 

p
o

lic
ie

s,
 v

is
io

n
, 

b
u

si
n

es
s 

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s,

 m
ar

ke
ti

n
g 

n
ee

d
s,

 f
u

n
d

in
g 

re
so

u
rc

es
, e

xp
an

si
o

n
 li

m
it

at
io

n
s,

 

et
c.

N
ew

 B
ra

n
d

in
g 

&
 M

ar
ke

ti
n

g 
C

am
p

ai
gn

5
1

O
n

-g
o

in
g

M
u

lt
ip

le
 C

o
u

n
ci

l m
ee

ti
n

gs
 h

el
d

 o
n

 t
h

is
 t

o
p

ic
. S

ti
ll 

lo
o

ki
n

g 
fo

r 
co

m
m

u
n

it
y 

vi
si

o
n

in
g 

ex
er

si
se

 a
n

d
 in

vo
lv

em
en

t

B
e

au
ti

fi
ca

ti
o

n
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e

3
1

N
o

 S
ta

rt
ed

N
o

 w
o

rk
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 t
o

w
ar

d
 t

h
is

 g
o

al

La
n

d
 U

se
 S

u
rv

ey
 o

f 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
1

1
O

n
-g

o
in

g

P
la

n
n

in
g 

st
af

f 
co

n
ti

n
u

in
g 

to
 c

o
n

d
u

ct
 e

le
ct

ro
n

ic
 a

n
d

 o
n

-t
h

e-
gr

o
u

n
d

 s
u

rv
ey

s 
o

f 

p
ro

p
er

ti
es

 in
 p

re
p

ar
at

io
n

 o
f 

u
p

d
at

in
g 

th
e 

ge
n

er
al

 p
la

n
.

G
IS

 S
ys

te
m

 A
va

ila
b

le
 o

n
 W

eb
0

0
C

o
m

p
le

te
St

af
f 

w
o

rk
ed

 w
it

h
 U

M
P

I t
o

 g
et

 u
p

d
at

ed
 G

IS
 s

ys
te

m
 o

n
 c

it
y 

w
eb

si
te

O
th

er
:

0
0

O
n

-g
o

in
g

St
af

f 
is

 p
ro

vi
d

in
g 

p
ro

-a
ct

iv
e 

m
o

n
th

ly
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
o

u
tr

ea
ch

 c
o

lu
m

n
 in

 lo
ca

l p
ap

er
 t

o
 

ad
d

re
ss

 d
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

an
d

 t
ax

 r
el

at
ed

 is
su

es
.

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 D
EV

EL
O

P
M

EN
T 

P
R

IO
R

IT
IE

S

88



Monthly Permit Report

November 2020

CURRENT YEAR PRIOR YEAR PRIOR YEAR

MONTH TO DATE MONTH TO DATE

BUILDING PERMITS 7 50 1 58

HOMES 1 6 0 3

MOBILE HOMES 1 1 0 2

MULTI-FAMILY 0 0 0 2

COMMERCIAL 0 15 1 14

EXEMPT 3 4 0 1

PLUMBING PERMITS

INTERNAL 4 14 2 13

EXTERNAL 1 19 0 12

DEMO PERMITS 1 16 1 13

SIGN PERMITS 0 6 1 8

Year-to-Date is January 2020 to November 2020

November Tax-Exempt Permits: Aroostook Band of Micmacs (40X80 storage bldg), Catholic Church (ramp), Fire Station (roof)

Demo permits may be all or only a portion of a structure

89



Caribou Public Library 
DIRECTOR’S REPORT 

To:   Mayor and City Councilors  

  Dennis Marker, City Manager   

From: Hope Shafer, Library Director 

 

November 2020 Report 

 

 November is a fun month for us as everyone is beginning to be filled with 

holiday cheer! Smiles abound and cookbooks begin flying off the shelves as people 

think to try new things for their Thanksgiving table. The best part is our annual 

event, “No Fine November” where we get to play Santa Claus (yes, I am mixing 

holidays) and forgive our patrons fines during the month of November. We 

combine “No Fine November” with our annual food drive so it is Santa x2!       

 Miss Erin and Peter designed an adorable “Take & Make” turkey kit that 

flew out the door! Each kit came with all the ingredients to make an adorable cone 

turkey, even the feathers! The kit was so popular with our little patrons that a 

second batch was made to keep up with the demand! December’s “Take & Make” 

is an advent Santa where each day a cotton ball is added, eventually making 

Santa’s beard! Soooo cute!!! 

 This month the Caribou Public Library started our own YouTube channel! 

You can find us on YouTube by searching Caribou Public Library! (Click 

subscribe to be notified of each new video!) We had to bring this into being 

because we simply overwhelmed our website with Miss Erin’s Picture Book and 

Chapter Book Story Time videos and needed a larger platform to hold them all. 

The beauty of YouTube is the ease of navigation and organization. We are soooo 

happy with how it has made our videos available to a larger population than just 

Caribou.       Never fear, you can still get to all our videos from our website – that 

will never change.       

 I also made a startling and happy discovery with the help of Penny 

Thompson from the Tax Assessment’s Office. While answering a survey question 

for a New York University, I was asked what the library’s service area is? That got 

90



me thinking… so I began making a list of all the towns we service outside of 

Caribou, only including the ones that do not have their own library. Then I called 

Penny to confirm I was doing it correctly and together we figured out that the 

library’s service area is 296.65 square miles! That is HUGE and makes me so 

proud! Our little library has a 297 square mile service area!!! We. Are. 

AWESOME!!!  

 Next month is Christmas and I am so full of the holiday spirit I could bust! I 

cannot wait to decorate the library and make everything cheerful and bright! I am 

already looking forward to next month’s report to help spread even more joy! 

 

As always, happy reading!  

~Hope 

. 

91



    

C
IR

C
U

L
A

T
IO

N
 S

T
A

T
IS

T
IC

A
L

 C
O

M
P

A
R

IS
O

N
 

M
A

T
E

R
IA

L
 T

Y
P

E
 

J
A

N
 

F
E

B
 

M
A

R
 

A
P

R
 

M
A

Y
 

J
U

N
 

J
U

L
 

A
U

G
 

S
E

P
T

 
O

C
T

 
N

O
V

 
D

E
C

 

2
0

2
0
 

2
0

2
0
 

2
0

2
0
 

2
0

2
0
 

2
0

2
0
 

2
0

2
0
 

2
0

2
0
 

2
0

2
0
 

2
0

2
0
 

2
0

2
0
 

2
0

2
0
 

2
0

2
0
 

A
d

u
lt

 b
o

o
ks

 
5

6
4
 

5
2

9
 

3
3

1
 

7
5
 

5
3
 

3
2

9
 

6
5

9
 

9
1

8
 

9
1

6
 

8
6

7
 

9
1

7
 

  

Ju
ve

n
ile

 b
o

o
ks

 
6

4
8
 

7
0

9
 

5
0

2
 

7
3
 

5
6
 

4
7

0
 

6
3

2
 

8
1

8
 

6
9

0
 

8
9

5
 

6
8

1
 

  

Te
en

/Y
A

 b
o

o
ks

 
4

5
 

4
4
 

4
3
 

5
 

1
0
 

7
2
 

1
5

4
 

1
3

2
 

9
7
 

1
4

2
 

1
3

7
 

  

D
V

D
s 

3
5

3
 

3
7

2
 

1
8

4
 

6
 

1
5
 

8
5
 

2
5

5
 

4
6

3
 

3
1

0
 

4
8

8
 

3
8

9
 

  

eB
o

o
ks

/A
u

d
io

b
o

o
ks

 
1

3
3
 

1
4

5
 

1
5

2
 

1
3

0
 

1
3

6
 

1
2

2
 

1
6

9
 

1
2

9
 

1
3

8
 

1
9

6
 

2
7

3
 

  

M
ag

az
in

es
 

6
2
 

6
0
 

5
1
 

0
 

8
 

1
2
 

1
4

7
 

1
4

9
 

1
2

2
 

1
0

1
 

7
0
 

  

In
te

rl
ib

ra
ry

 lo
an

s 
1

1
7
 

6
8
 

4
2
 

0
 

3
 

2
2
 

1
8
 

7
9
 

8
3
 

7
0
 

6
9
 

  

P
u

zz
le

s 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

1
5
 

1
0
 

  

R
en

ew
al

s 
4

8
2
 

4
8

8
 

4
0

5
 

0
 

0
 

1
 

6
 

6
3

9
 

6
3

4
 

5
0

4
 

5
1

7
 

  

T
O

T
A

L
 N

U
M

B
E

R
S

 
2

,4
0

4
 

2
,4

1
5

 
1

,7
1

0
 

2
8

9
 

2
8

1
 

1
,1

1
3
 

2
,0

4
0
 

3
,3

2
7
 

2
,9

9
0

 
3

,2
7

8
 

3
,0

6
3
 

0
 

  **
A

s 
o

f 
20

2
0 

th
e 

M
ai

n
e 

St
at

e 
Li

b
ra

ry
 is

 n
o

w
 r

eq
u

ir
in

g 
th

at
 p

u
b

lic
 li

b
ra

ri
es

 t
ra

ck
 r

en
ew

al
s 

as
 p

ar
t 

o
f 

th
ei

r 
st

at
is

ti
cs

. *
*

 
   

92



     

Y
E

A
R

-T
O

-D
A

T
E

 O
V

E
R

A
L

L
 M

O
N

T
H

L
Y

 S
T

A
T

IS
T

IC
A

L
 C

O
M

P
A

R
IS

O
N

 

M
A

T
E

R
IA

L
 T

Y
P

E
 

N
O

V
 

D
E

C
 

J
A

N
  

F
E

B
 

M
A

R
 

A
P

R
 

M
A

Y
 

J
U

N
 

J
U

L
 

A
U

G
 

S
E

P
T

 
O

C
T

 
N

O
V

 

2
0

1
9
 

2
0

1
9
 

2
0

2
0
 

2
0

2
0
 

2
0

2
0
 

2
0

2
0
 

2
0

2
0
 

2
0

2
0
 

2
0

2
0
 

2
0

2
0
 

2
0

2
0
 

2
0

2
0
 

2
0

2
0
 

C
ir

cu
la

ti
o

n
 

1
,6

0
3
 

1
,7

7
0
 

1
,9

2
2
 

2
,3

2
8
 

1
,7

1
0
 

2
8

9
 

2
8

1
 

1
,1

1
3
 

2
,0

1
0
 

3
,3

2
7
 

2
,9

9
0
 

3
,2

7
8
 

3
,0

6
3
 

L
ib

ra
ry

 V
is

it
o

rs
 

4
,3

9
4
 

5
,8

3
3
 

5
,7

1
0
 

4
,9

9
1
 

2
,4

9
5
 

2
6

7
 

2
2

0
 

3
9

5
 

3
,1

9
7
 

3
,2

3
4
 

3
,6

7
5
 

3
,5

7
0
 

2
,5

7
3
 

W
i-

F
i 

a
cc

es
s 

5
,7

5
1
 

8
,2

3
6
 

8
,8

0
2
 

1
0

,6
2
8
 

1
4

,1
4
0
 

2
,7

2
9
 

7
,2

4
7
 

1
2

,9
0
2
 

1
4

,6
0
0
 

5
8

,1
1
7
 

2
0

,9
6
0
 

1
6

,8
3
3
 

1
0

,2
5
6
 

B
o

o
k

s 
a

d
d

ed
 

1
0

6
 

1
8

1
 

2
2

1
 

9
0
 

9
9
 

3
7
 

9
1
 

9
5
 

1
0

4
 

1
3

9
 

1
0

7
 

2
1

0
 

1
4

4
 

B
o

o
k

s 
w

it
h

d
ra

w
n

 
9

 
1

4
3
 

4
8
 

5
4
 

3
6

0
 

2
8
 

2
1
 

2
4
 

3
 

6
2
 

3
3
 

9
 

6
 

P
ro

g
ra

m
 

P
a

rt
ic

ip
a

ti
o

n
 

2
0

6
 

3
4

6
 

4
0

1
 

3
7

8
 

1
,0

8
0
 

2
1

0
1
 

1
,3

2
1
 

9
9

7
 

8
9

8
 

5
3

3
 

5
6

9
 

6
,2

8
9
 

  

N
ew

 r
eg

is
te

re
d

 

p
a

tr
o

n
s 

6
 

1
3
 

2
2
 

1
7
 

1
1
 

1
 

1
 

3
 

9
 

1
1
 

1
7
 

1
5
 

8
 

A
rc

h
iv

es
 (

#
 o

f 
u

se
rs

) 
2

7 
2

4 
3

8
 

3
6
 

1
7
 

0
 

0
 

1
1
 

2
6
 

3
7
 

3
1
 

2
9

 
3

9
 

  

Y
E

A
R

-T
O

-D
A

T
E

 M
O

N
T

H
L

Y
 C

IR
C

U
L

A
T

IO
N

 C
O

M
P

A
R

IS
O

N
 

Y
ea

r
 

J
A

N
 

F
E

B
 

M
A

R
 

A
P

R
 

M
A

Y
 

J
U

N
 

J
U

L
 

A
U

G
 

S
E

P
T

 
O

C
T

 
N

O
V

 
D

E
C

 
T

O
T

A
L

 

2
0

1
7
 

1
,4

2
9
 

1
,6

4
7
 

2
,1

6
5
 

1
,6

7
1
 

1
,7

8
2
 

2
,0

5
3
 

2
,0

8
6
 

2
,2

2
5
 

1
,9

9
5
 

2
,3

3
5

 
2

,2
8

4
 

2
,0

9
4
 

2
3

,7
6
6

 

2
0

1
8
 

1
,7

8
9
 

1
,7

5
5
 

2
,3

9
6
 

2
,7

5
8
 

2
,1

9
2
 

2
,5

0
1
 

2
,6

2
9
 

3
,1

6
6
 

2
,7

2
7
 

2
,8

9
4

 
2

,5
8

7
 

2
,1

0
4
 

2
9

,4
9
8

 

93



2
0

1
9
 

2
,9

2
4
 

2
,0

2
6
 

2
,7

2
8
 

2
,6

6
3
 

2
,1

1
6
 

1
,9

7
9
 

2
,5

1
9
 

2
,2

9
7
 

2
,1

2
9
 

2
,0

9
9

 
1

,6
0

3
 

1
,7

7
0
 

2
6

,8
5
3

 

2
0

2
0
 

2
,4

0
4
 

2
,4

1
5
 

1
,7

1
0
 

2
8

9
 

2
8

1
 

1
,1

1
3
 

2
,0

4
0
 

3
,3

2
7
 

2
,9

9
0
 

3
,2

7
8

 
3

,0
6

3
 

  
2

2
,9

1
0

 

 

94



JA
N

FE
B

M
A

R
A

P
R

M
A

Y
JU

N
JU

L
A

U
G

SE
P

O
C

T
N

O
V

D
EC

To
ta

l

C
O

M
P

L
A

IN
T

S
1

8
5

2
1

5
3

1
2

4
4

8
2

8
8

6
3

4
1

6
3

1
7

7
2

5
0

7
2

5
1

7
2

5
0

1
2

3
5

2
2

0
8

8
2

5
4

5
29

,8
20

   
 

M
/V

 A
C

C
ID

E
N

T
S

4
6

4
4

1
9

2
8

2
0

2
1

2
1

1
5

2
3

2
0

3
6

2
6

31
9

   
   

   
 

E
S

C
O

R
T

S
1

1
0

3
1

4
2

6
4

8
6

1
37

   
   

   
   

T
H

E
F

T
 C

O
M

P
L

A
IN

T
S

1
4

9
6

8
1

5
1

2
8

1
5

1
4

1
2

1
2

1
2

13
7

   
   

   
 

A
N

IM
A

L
 C

O
M

P
L

A
IN

T
S

4
2

9
5

1
1

9
1

4
1

1
8

7
9

1
1

10
0

   
   

   
 

D
O

M
E

S
T

IC
 C

O
M

P
L

A
IN

T
S

1
2

5
1

2
1

0
7

1
0

1
3

1
4

0
4

2
1

3
10

2
   

   
   

 

B
U

R
G

L
A

R
Y

 C
O

M
P

L
A

IN
T

S
3

1
1

8
7

4
0

0
3

3
6

2
38

   
   

   
   

O
.U

.I
.

1
0

7
1

4
4

1
1

0
3

3
3

28
   

   
   

   

M
/V

 T
H

E
F

T
S

2
0

0
0

3
1

1
0

1
0

1
1

10
   

   
   

   

M
IS

S
IN

G
 P

E
R

S
O

N
S

1
1

0
0

2
3

4
2

2
3

0
3

21
   

   
   

   

J
U

V
E

N
IL

E
 C

O
M

P
L

A
IN

T
S

1
6

0
2

2
2

2
3

1
3

5
3

30
   

   
   

   

C
IV

IL
 C

O
M

P
L

A
IN

T
S

3
2

3
6

4
0

0
0

0
3

2
0

23
   

   
   

   

P
R

O
W

L
E

R
 C

O
M

P
L

A
IN

T
S

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

-
   

   
   

  

A
S

S
IS

T
 O

T
H

E
R

 A
G

E
N

C
Y

1
8

3
0

2
1

2
5

3
6

2
8

2
4

2
2

1
4

2
9

2
9

3
3

30
9

   
   

   
 

A
S

S
A

U
L

T
 A

R
R

E
S

T
2

1
0

1
0

0
0

1
1

4
2

4
16

   
   

   
   

T
H

E
F

T
 A

R
R

E
S

T
S

6
5

0
5

1
0

6
0

1
2

1
0

7
43

   
   

   
   

S
P

E
E

D
IN

G
1

5
1

4
2

3
4

3
2

8
4

6
4

5
4

5
1

6
1

5
2

2
29

4
   

   
   

 

S
T

O
P

S
/C

H
E

C
K

S
 M

/V
1

4
8

4
1

1
9

7
2

0
0

8
2

4
2

4
2

8
8

8
2

6
7

0
1

9
7

4
1

9
7

4
2

0
5

5
1

9
1

5
1

6
6

1
2

1
4

5
24

,3
95

   
 

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 T
IC

K
E

T
S

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

-
   

   
   

  

H
A

N
D

L
IN

G
 P

R
IS

O
N

E
R

S
3

9
2

6
4

4
3

3
5

1
4

4
3

6
3

6
3

3
4

3
4

0
3

4
45

9
   

   
   

 

W
A

R
R

A
N

T
 A

R
R

E
S

T
S

7
6

5
1

6
2

3
1

2
1

4
1

8
1

5
9

1
4

1
2

15
1

   
   

   
 

U
N

L
A

W
F

U
L

 S
E

X
. 

C
O

N
T

A
C

T
0

0
1

0
2

0
1

4
1

1
1

0
11

   
   

   
   

G
R

O
S

S
 S

E
X

. 
A

S
S

A
U

L
T

0
1

1
0

0
0

0
1

2
0

0
0

5
   

   
   

   
  

B
U

S
IN

E
S

S
 A

L
A

R
M

S
2

3
1

0
9

1
2

7
1

7
1

5
9

9
1

0
7

1
5

14
3

   
   

   
 

B
U

R
G

L
A

R
Y

 A
R

R
E

S
T

S
1

2
0

0
7

0
1

0
0

0
1

0
12

   
   

   
   

JA
N

FE
B

M
A

R
A

P
R

M
A

Y
JU

N
JU

L
A

U
G

SE
P

O
C

T
N

O
V

D
EC

To
ta

l

C
O

M
P

L
A

IN
T

S
2

3
8

8
1

2
5

8
1
8
9
4

2
0

5
5

1
7

0
3

1
8

0
0

2
1

0
8

1
7

2
7

1
5

4
0

16
,4

73
   

 
-2

9
.3

%

M
/V

 A
C

C
ID

E
N

T
S

3
4

7
1
8

2
0

8
1

8
1

6
1

9
2

0
16

0
   

   
   

 
-3

0
.4

%

E
S

C
O

R
T

S
4

0
2

3
2

5
3

2
2

23
   

   
   

   
-3

4
.3

%

T
H

E
F

T
 C

O
M

P
L

A
IN

T
S

1
4

1
5

1
8

2
0

1
2

2
0

9
9

1
0

12
7

   
   

   
 

15
.5

%

A
N

IM
A

L
 C

O
M

P
L

A
IN

T
S

4
6

2
1

1
4

9
1

0
7

8
6

85
   

   
   

   
9.

0%

D
O

M
E

S
T

IC
 C

O
M

P
L

A
IN

T
S

1
0

1
1

1
1

8
1

1
1

3
0

1
0

8
82

   
   

   
   

13
.9

%

B
U

R
G

L
A

R
Y

 C
O

M
P

L
A

IN
T

S
6

4
2

6
0

5
1

4
2

30
   

   
   

   
-1

1
.8

%

O
.U

.I
.

5
4

3
2

4
4

1
1

2
26

   
   

   
   

44
.4

%

M
/V

 T
H

E
F

T
S

2
0

0
3

3
3

1
1

0
13

   
   

   
   

44
.4

%

M
IS

S
IN

G
 P

E
R

S
O

N
S

1
2

1
2

0
2

2
1

3
14

   
   

   
   

-1
7

.6
%

J
U

V
E

N
IL

E
 C

O
M

P
L

A
IN

T
S

0
2

1
1

0
2

6
2

0
14

   
   

   
   

-3
3

.3
%

C
IV

IL
 C

O
M

P
L

A
IN

T
S

6
3

7
0

0
0

0
9

4
29

   
   

   
   

61
.1

%

P
R

O
W

L
E

R
 C

O
M

P
L

A
IN

T
S

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
-

   
   

   
  

#D
IV

/0
!

A
S

S
IS

T
 O

T
H

E
R

 A
G

E
N

C
Y

4
2

1
6

2
0

2
6

3
6

2
7

2
9

2
9

2
6

25
1

   
   

   
 

11
.6

%

A
S

S
A

U
L

T
 A

R
R

E
S

T
3

1
0

6
2

1
1

4
3

21
   

   
   

   
90

.9
%

T
H

E
F

T
 A

R
R

E
S

T
S

7
6

7
9

3
1

5
4

1
8

60
   

   
   

   
93

.5
%

S
P

E
E

D
IN

G
2

1
0

6
1

6
1

1
8

1
2

8
5

87
   

   
   

   
-6

5
.9

%

S
T

O
P

S
/C

H
E

C
K

S
 M

/V
1

8
6

7
9

3
5

1
4
8
1

1
5

4
8

1
1

5
7

1
2

5
4

1
6

7
3

1
3

0
6

1
1

6
0

12
,3

81
   

 
-3

5
.0

%

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 T
IC

K
E

T
S

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
-

   
   

   
  

#D
IV

/0
!

H
A

N
D

L
IN

G
 P

R
IS

O
N

E
R

S
5

9
1

3
1
3

1
9

1
4

2
5

2
6

2
5

2
1

21
5

   
   

   
 

-3
9

.4
%

W
A

R
R

A
N

T
 A

R
R

E
S

T
S

3
3

0
1
0

4
5

8
1

5
1

5
5

95
   

   
   

   
-2

5
.8

%

U
N

L
A

W
F

U
L

 S
E

X
. 

C
O

N
T

A
C

T
2

0
0

1
1

0
1

0
0

5
   

   
   

   
  

-5
0

.0
%

G
R

O
S

S
 S

E
X

. 
A

S
S

A
U

L
T

0
0

0
2

0
1

0
1

0
4

   
   

   
   

  
33

.3
%

B
U

S
IN

E
S

S
 A

L
A

R
M

S
9

9
8

8
1

2
1

6
9

1
4

1
4

99
   

   
   

   
-9

.2
%

B
U

R
G

L
A

R
Y

 A
R

R
E

S
T

S
1

3
0

3
0

8
0

0
3

18
   

   
   

   
80

.0
%

2
0

1
9

P
o

lic
e

 D
e

p
ar

tm
e

n
t 

M
o

n
th

ly
 R

e
p

o
rt

2
0

2
0

%
 C

h
an

ge
 

fr
o

m
 P

re
v.

 

YT
D

95



Waiting List Statisics

2019 YTD Oct-20 Nov-20 YTD

Applications Received N/A 15 8 101

2019 YTD Oct-20 Nov-20 YTD

Applicants in Jurisdiction N/A 55 11 811

VAWA Preference 0 1 45

Veteran's Preference 0 0 14

Natural Disaster 0 0 2

 Living in Caribou 35 10 544

2019 YTD Oct-20 Nov-20 YTD

Applicant's Pulled 120 30 30 150

Vouchers Issued 10 27

Leased Up 4 10

Voucher Expired 0 3

Vouchers Pending 0 0

Housing Choice Voucher Program

2019 YTD Oct-20 Nov-20 YTD

HUD Allocated Vouchers 2123 193 193 2123

Total Vouchers Leased 2000 174 177 1997

Port Outs 25 3 3 32

Homeownership 0 1 1 11

All Other Vouchers 1977 170 173 1954

YTD Openings 123 18 16 126

Vouchers on Street 116 2 11 29

Total HAP Expense 849,969$             74,640$           74,810$           871,125$             

All Other Voucher 779,683$             $67,465.00 $68,180.00 798,744$             

Utility Reimbursements, Participants 3,003$                 $98.00 $100.00 1,271$                 

Port Out Payments 9,542$                 $1,146.00 $1,142.00 12,289$               

Homeownership HAP -$                         $332.00 $283.00 3,505$                 

FSS Escrow, Particiants Account 57,741$               $5,365.00 $5,105.00 55,316$               

Ave. Per Unit Cost 417$                    431$                423$                436$                    

Caribou Housing Authority
Housing Choice Voucher (Section 8),

Family Self-Sufficiency & Homeownership Programs

November 2020

96



Housing Choice Voucher Program (cont.)

2019 YTD Oct-20 Nov-20 YTD

Lease Up Rates

HUD Allocated -vs- Leased 100% 90% 92% 94%

HUD Funded -vs- HAP Expense 99% 89% 89% 93%

Housing Quality Standards Inspections

2019 YTD Oct-20 Nov-20 YTD

Initial N/A 5 4 23

Passed (I) 5 3 20

Failed (I) 1 3

Re-Inspected (I) 1 2

Annual Inspection 25 6 101

Passed (A) 25 2 76

Failed (A) 10 3 28

Re-Inspected (A) 1 9

No Show (A) 3

Tenant/Landlord Requested 8

Passed (R) 4

Failed (R) 2

Re-Inspected (R) 2

Other, Public Housing Authority Inspections 10 16

Initial/Annual/Special 0 2 16

Family Self-Sufficiency

2019 YTD Oct-20 Nov-20 YTD

Number of Participants 375 43 40 436

Number Earning Escrow 157 18 16 170

FSS Escrow, Particiants Account 34,657$               5,171$             5,105$             55,017$               

FSS Famlies, Disbursement N/A 1 12

FSS Disbursement Amount -$                         350.00$           -$                 17,836$               

FSS Graduate, Families 1 0 0 3

FSS Graudate, Escrow $2,267 -$                 -$                 13,261$               

FSS Forfeiture, Families N/A 0 0 6

FSS Forfeiture, Escrow -$                         -$                 -$                 $5,109

Homeownership 

2019 YTD Oct-20 Nov-20 YTD

Number of Participants 0 1 1 10

Homeownership HAP -$                         283$                283$                3,505$                 

97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105


	11DEC2020_DB_1.pdf
	Penny Thompson, RES, CMA4  Tax Assessor / Chief Building Official

	11DEC2020_DB_2
	11DEC2020_DB_3
	11DEC2020_DB_4
	11DEC2020_DB_5
	REPORT

